
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 

 
A G E N D A 

      
DATE:  Wednesday, December 16, 2015 
CLOSED MEETING:     6:30 P.M.  
REGULAR MEETING:  7:00 P.M. 

≠ Denotes resolution prepared  
 

1. Call the Meeting to Order  
 

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest & the General Nature Thereof.  
 
3. Adoption and Receipt of Minutes of the Previous Meeting. ≠ 

  
(a) Council Meeting – December 2, 2015 
(b) Closed Council Meeting –December 2, 2015 

 
4. Business Arising Out of the Minutes.  
 
5. PUBLIC MEETINGS 

 
1.  Community Based Strategic Plan  

 
*note this Public Meeting will be held on Thursday, January 14, 2016 at  
7:00 p.m. at the Puslinch Community Centre , 23 Brock Road South 

 
(a)   Notice of Public Meeting  

 
2.  2016 Proposed Budget  

 
*note this Public Meeting will be held on Thursday, January 21, 2016 at 7:00 
p.m. at the Municipal Complex– 7404 Wellington Rd. 34, Guelph 

 
(a) Notice of Public Meeting  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
DECEMBER 16, 2015 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 2 
 

  
6. COMMUNICATIONS  
 

1. Warren Bitulitic Limited – The Warren Paving & Materials Group Limited 
a Subdivision of Larfage Canada Inc.  
McMillan Pit – Licence No. 10671 
Part Lot 23, Concession 1 
 

(a) Correspondence from Lafarge Canada Inc. regarding 2015 Compliance 
Assessment Reports regarding McMillan Licence No. 10671 dated November 
10, 2015. 

(b) 2015 Licensees Compliance Assessment Report.    
 

2. St. Mary’s Cement Inc. (Canada)  
Licence #48576 – Tikal Pit  
Victoria Rd.  

 
(a) Correspondence from Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry regarding 

Surrender of Licence under the Aggregate Resources Act, St. Mary’s Cement 
Inc. (Canada) Licence #48576, Southwest Half Lot 21, Concession 9, 
Township of Puslinch, County of Wellington dated November 23, 2015.  

 
3. CBM Puslinch Pit - Licence # 17600 (4313 Sideroad 25 S)  

Neubauer Pit Licence No. 625284 (7203 Concession 2)  
 

(a) Correspondence from the Grand River Conservation Authority regarding CBM 
Puslinch Pit and Neubauer Pit – Monitoring Well MP7 Decommissioning, Part 
Lots 26 & 27, Concession 1, Township of Puslinch dated November 23, 2015.  

 
4. Requests to Waive/Reduce Fees ≠ 

 
(a) Correspondence from Ms. Rochelle Barber and Ms. Lee-Ann Prickett 

regarding request to waive fees for a fundraising event to be held at the 
Puslinch Community Centre on Friday, January 29, 2016.   
 

(b) Correspondence from Mr. Jamie Skeoch, Principal Aberfoyle Public School 
regarding Aberfoyle Public School request to reduce fees for use of the ice 
rink at the Optimist Recreation Centre dated November 27, 2015.    
 

  
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
DECEMBER 16, 2015 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 3 
 

5.  Intergovernmental Affairs ≠ 
 

(a) Various correspondence for review.   
 
7. DELEGATIONS / PRESENTATIONS 
 

1. 7:05 p.m. Ms. Lee-Ann Prickett, regarding fundraising event to be held at 
Puslinch Community Centre on Friday, January 29, 2016.  *See Agenda Item 
8.4(a).  ≠ 
 

2. 7:20 p.m. Mr. David Roy, regarding speed limit reduction request on Puslinch 
Concession 4 between Side road 20 and Wellington County Road 35.  *See 
Agenda Item 8.5(a) ≠ 

 
8. REPORTS  

1. Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services  
 
None.  

2. Finance Department  
 

(a) Report FIN-2015-038 – Annual Indexing of Development Charges ≠ 
 

3. Administration Department   
 

(a) Report ADM-2015-022– Agreement with County of Wellington – Lease of Library 
Space – Puslinch Historical Society. ≠ 
    

(b) Report ADM-2015-023 – Automatic Aid Agreement with the Corporation of the 
City of Cambridge – Fire and Emergency Services Agreement – Puslinch Fire 
and Rescue Services.  ≠ 
 

(c) Report ADM-2015-024 - Public Sector and MPP Accountability and 
Transparency Act Update. ≠ 
 

(d) Report ADM-2015-025 - Modified Work Program and Workplace 
Accommodations.  *to be provided under separate cover on Monday, 
December 14, 2015.   ≠ 

 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
DECEMBER 16, 2015 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 4 
 

 
(e) Report ADM-2015-026 – Mission Statement Considerations ≠ 

 
(f) Council appointments to the Planning and Development Advisory Committee and 

Committee of Adjustments. ≠ 
 

(g) Confirmation re: 2016 Council meeting dates. 
 

4. Planning and Building  
 

(a)  Chief Building Official Report – November 2015. ≠ 
 

(b) Report PD-2015-029 – Site Plan Agreement - 2120826 Ontario Ltd – property 
described as Concession 7, Rear Part Lot 20, municipally known as 20 Brock 
Road N.≠ 

5. Roads & Parks Department 
 

(a) Report PW-2015-006– Request for Speed Limit Reduction - note this matter 
was deferred from the December 2nd Agenda. ≠ 

6. Recreation Department  
 

(a) Report REC-2015-011 - Calvary Baptist Church and Puslinch Minor Soccer Club 
Agreement ≠ 

7.  Mayor’s Updates  
 

(a) County of Wellington – 2016-2020 – Five Year Budget Plan presentation to 
Wellington County Council – November 19, 2015  

 
(b) County of Wellington Solid Waste Services Committee Report – Mobile 

Household Hazardous Waste Services dated September 8, 2015 
 

(c) County of Wellington Solid Waste Services Committee Report – SWS 
Strategy Discussion Paper dated November 10, 2015.    



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
DECEMBER 16, 2015 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 5 
 

 
9. NOTICES OF MOTION  
 
 None.  
 
10. COMMITTEE MINUTES ≠ 
 

(a) Planning and Development Advisory Committee – November 3, 2015  
(b) Committee of Adjustment  -  November 3, 2015  
(c) Committee of Adjustment – November 10, 2015  

 
11. MUNICIPAL ANNOUCEMENTS 
 
12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
13. CLOSED ITEMS ≠ 

 
(a) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk regarding litigation or 

potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board – Insurance Matters.  

 
14. BY-LAWS ≠  
 

(a) A by-law to authorize the Mayor and Clerk to execute an Agreement with Andrea 
Stacia Clarke.  – Resolution No. 2015-474 
 

(b) A by-law to authorize the Mayor and Clerk to execute an Amending Site Plan 
Agreement with 2354084 Ontario Limited and repeal By-Law Nos. 58/13 and 
10/14 (Mammoet) – Resolution No. 2015-475    
 

(c) A by-law to authorize the Mayor and Clerk to execute a renewal of the Lease 
Agreement with the County of Wellington to lease library space for the Puslinch 
Historical Society for the term of December 31, 2015 to  December 31, 2017.  – 
Item 8(3)(a)  
 

(d) A by-law to authorize the Mayor and Clerk to execute an Automatic Aid 
Agreement with the Corporation of the City of Cambridge – Fire and Emergency 
Services Agreement – Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services for the term of January 
1, 2016 to December 31, 2016. – Item 8(3)(b) 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
DECEMBER 16, 2015 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 6 
 

(e) A by-law to authorize the Mayor and Clerk to execute a Site Plan Agreement with 
2120826 Ontario Ltd. (Ren’s) – Item 8(4)(b) 

 
15. CONFIRMING BY-LAW ≠ 
 

(a) By-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the 
Township of Puslinch.  

 
16. ADJOURNMENT ≠ 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
December 2, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 12 
 

 
M I N U T E S 

 
DATE:  Wednesday, December 2, 2015  
TIME:   12:00 noon 

 
The December 2, 2015 Regular Council Meeting was held on the above date and called to 
order at 12:00 noon in the Council Chambers, Aberfoyle.  
 
1. ATTENDANCE:   

 
Mayor Dennis Lever  
Councillor Matthew Bulmer 
Councillor Susan Fielding  
Councillor Ken Roth  
Councillor Wayne Stokley  
 
STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: 

 
1. Donna Tremblay, Deputy Clerk 
2. Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk  
3. Paul Creamer, Director of Finance/Treasurer 
4. Robert Kelly, Chief Building Official 
5. Steve Goode, Fire Chief  

    
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 
1. Karen Lever 
2. Kathy White  
3. Doug Smith 
4. Joe Filippelli 
5. William Knetsch 
6. Meghan Yzerman  

 
Resolution No. 2015-464: Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  

 Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 
That Council hereby waives the procedural by-law to allow and consider a matter after the 
preparation of the agenda regarding a matter which is time sensitive – Syrian Refugee 
Assistance.  

 
CARRIED  
 

2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST & THE GENERAL NATURE THEREOF: 
 
None.  
 

3. ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES: 
 

(a) Council Meeting –November 18, 2015  
(b) Closed Council Meeting – November 18, 2015 

 
Resolution No. 2015-465:  Moved by Councillor Roth and  

Seconded by Councillor Bulmer  
 
That the minutes of the following meetings be adopted as written and distributed:  
 
(a) Council Meeting – November 18, 2015, as amended. 
(b) Closed Council Meeting – November 18, 2015 
CARRIED 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
December 2, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 2 of 12 
 

 
4. BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF THE MINUTES: 

 
None.  
 

5. PUBLIC MEETINGS:  
 
None.  

 
6. COMMUNICATIONS: 
  
1. Mill Creek Pit, Licence No. 5738 

7115 Concession 2  
 

(a) Correspondence from Dufferin Aggregates regarding Monthly Monitoring Report, Mill 
Creek Pit, License No. 5738, Township of Puslinch, Wellington County (October 2015) 
dated November 12, 2015.   
 
Mr. Stan Denhoed, Harden Environmental Services Ltd. has reviewed the report 
and advised that there are no exceedences and has no comments.  
 

(b) Correspondence from CRH Canada Group Inc. regarding Notification of Application for 
a Major Site Plan Amendment – Dufferin Aggregates – Mill Creek Pit dated October 19, 
2015.   

 
  2. Townline Road   
 

(a) Correspondence from Roger Will regarding Townline Road dated November 10, 2015. 
 

 3.  Wellington County Population, Household and Employment Forecast Update, 2011-
2041  

 
(a) Correspondence from the County of Wellington Planning and Development Department 

regarding Wellington County Population, Household and Employment Forecast Update, 
2011-2041 dated November 16, 2015.  

 
≠4. Request to Waive Fees  
   

(a) Correspondence from Optimist Club of Puslinch regarding request to waive fees with 
respect to Family Day Weekend events, February 13, 14 and 15, 2016.   

 
Resolution No. 2015-466:   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

   Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

That Council receive the correspondence from the Optimist Club of Puslinch Inc. 
regarding the request for use of the facilities and to waive fees for the 2016 Family Day 
weekend (February 13, 14, 15, 2016) dated November 18, 2015; and  

 
 That Council authorize the following:  
 

• the use of the rink pad and community centre on Saturday, February 13th and 
Sunday, February 14, 2016; and  

 
• the use of the rink pad, gymnasium, community center, ball diamond and community 

centre parklands on Monday, February 15, 2016.      
 
 That the Optimist provide insurance in the amount of 5 million naming the Township as 

an additional insured; and  
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
December 2, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 3 of 12 
 

 That the Optimist Club assume the costs for the part-time staff on Saturday, February 
13th and Sunday, February 14th and bartenders;   

 
 That Council waive the fees associated with the rental of the rink pad and Puslinch 

Community Centre at the cost of $4,797.98 inclusive of HST for Saturday, February 13th 
and Sunday, February 14th, 2016; and  

 
 That Council  waive the fees associated with the rental of the rink pad, gymnasium, 

community centre, ball diamond and parklands at a cost of $1,486.74 inclusive of HST 
for Monday, February 15, 2016; and  

 
 That staff advise the Puslinch Optimist Club that the fees have been waived.  
 

CARRIED 
 

(b) Correspondence from 2016 Sharing Experiences Workshop Organizing Committee 
regarding request to waive fees for a workshop to be held at the Puslinch Community 
Centre on Saturday, March 5, 2016.    

 
Resolution No. 2015-467:   Moved by Councillor Roth and  

   Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 

That Council authorize a 40% reduction of the rental fees for the 2016 Sharing 
Experiences Workshop to be held at the Puslinch Community Centre on Saturday, 
March 5, 2016. 

 
CARRIED  

 
Resolution No. 2015-468   Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

   Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 

That Council receive the correspondence from 2016 Sharing Experiences Workshop 
Organizing Committee regarding request to waive fees for a workshop to be held at the 
Puslinch Community Centre on Saturday, March 5, 2016; and  
 
That Council authorize the use of the Alf Hales and Archie MacRobbie Hall at the 
Puslinch Community Centre for the 2016 Sharing Experiences Workshop to be held at 
the Puslinch Community Centre on Saturday, March 5, 2016; and  
 
That Council authorize a 40% reduction of the rental fees at the cost of $513.04 
inclusive of HST for Saturday, March 5, 2016; and  
 
That staff advise the 2016 Sharing Experiences Workshop Organizing Committee that 
the fees have been reduced. 
 
CARRIED 
 

≠5.  Intergovernmental Affairs   
 

(a) Various correspondence for review.  
 

IG# 2 - Mayor Lever advised that he will be reaching out to Aberfoyle Public School to 
see if arrangements can be made for 2016 Local Government Week.     

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
December 2, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 4 of 12 
 

 
 Resolution No. 2015-469:   Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  

 Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 

That the correspondence items listed on the Council Agenda for December 2, 2015 
Council meeting be received. 
 
CARRIED 
 

7. DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 
 

1. Mr. Joe Filippelli, Senior Manager, Advisory Services, BDO Canada LLP regarding 
Township of Puslinch Fleet Management Analysis.   
 
Mr. Filippelli provided Council with a summary of the BDO Canada LLP Township of 
Puslinch Fleet Management Analysis.  
 

Resolution No. 2015-470:   Moved by Councillor Roth and  
   Seconded by Councillor Bulmer  
 
That Council receive the delegation from Mr. Joe Filippelli, Senior Manager, Advisory 
Services, BDO Canada LLP regarding Township of Puslinch Fleet Management 
Analysis. 
 
CARRIED 
 

2.  Mr. William Knetsch regarding Syrian Refugee Assistance.  
 

Mr. Knetsch made a presentation to Council with respect to local efforts to supply Syrian 
Refugee Assistance   

 
Council thanked Mr. Knetsch for his presentation.      

 
Resolution No. 2015-471:   Moved by Councillor Roth and  

    Seconded by Councillor Bulmer  
 

That Council receive the delegation from William Knetsch regarding Syrian Refugee 
Assistance.  
 
CARRIED 
 

8. REPORTS: 
 

1. Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services  
 

None.  
 

2. Finance Department  
 

(a) Report FIN-2015-037– Fleet Management. 
 

Resolution No. 2015-472:  Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  
   Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 
That Report FIN-2015-037 regarding the Fleet Management Study be received. 

 
CARRIED  

 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
December 2, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 5 of 12 
 

3. Administration Department 
 

(a) Report ADM-2015-021– Aggregate Resources Act Review – Blueprint for Change – 
County Report PD2015-37. 

 
Council discussed additions to those recommendations contained in Report ADM-
2015-021 as follows:  
 
Additional Studies 
 
We support new provisions that would enable the MNRF to require additional studies, 
information and updated site plans for existing aggregate sites and would request that 
this be clarified to ensure that the local municipality will be notified and consulted as 
part of this new process. 
 
Standardizing Tonnage Conditions 
 
As tonnage conditions control the amount of material that can be removed from an 
aggregate site and directly relate to offsite noise and traffic impacts, we support this 
clarification.  However, we remain concerned that an operation can be licensed for a 
significantly larger tonnage limit than was proposed or relied upon during the planning 
approval process. 2.4 Increasing tonnage through an amendment must require 
municipal consultation. This is a “significant” amendment. 
 
Updates to site plan information requirements 
 
We support the introduction of establishing a maximum disturbed area requirement for 
site plans, provided that this is a fixed amount that a municipality could rely on rather 
than a variable that could be amended by the applicant once zoning has been 
approved. 
 
New requirements for requests to lower extraction depth below the water table. 
 
The change to require a new application to extend extraction below the water table on 
a site currently approved for above water table extraction will provide the public with 
greater clarity during the initial licensing process. However, an applicant could receive 
zoning based on plans for an above water table operation and go on to be licensed for 
a below water table extraction operation without a new planning application and this 
could lead to the requirement for other municipal control like vertical zoning.  We would 
request a new planning application be required as well. 
 
Establish new rules and maximums for the extraction of aggregates from private land 
for a personal use. 
 
Considering the purpose of this non licensed use is to provide for the use of the 
extracted material on the property where it has been extracted, and that material is 
required to remain on the site, we would support the use of screening equipment on 
the site. This would enhance the usability of the product extracted and reduce the need 
to import additional materials. 
 
 Streamlining and changing the frequency of self-compliance reports. 
 
It is proposed to change the frequency of self-compliance reports from annual to every 
two years for Class A licenses and every three years for Class B licenses. We would 
support this change provided that a compliance report would be required if either of the 
following occurs: 
 
• the operation has progressed into a new phase of extraction since the last 

compliance report was submitted  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
December 2, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 6 of 12 
 

• extraction has resumed on a licensed property that has been idle since the last 
compliance report was submitted. 

 
Disconnect between Licensing and Zoning 

  
The Blueprint for change contains several recommendations that we support such as 
clarification of tonnage limits, establishing a prescribed maximum disturbed area and 
the requirement for existing above water table operations to submit a new application 
to extend their operation below the water table. While we recognize that these 
enhancements will strengthen the licensing process, the proposed changes do not 
address the disconnect between the planning process and the licensing process.  
Typically, the local municipality will rely on a specific license application or a specific 
set of site plans during the planning process in order to assess the potential impacts of 
the proposed operation. In particular the off site impacts such as traffic, noise, dust and 
the potential effects on local groundwater. These impacts relate directly to the 
operational characteristics of the site. 
 
However, neither  the current nor  proposed framework provide for a process to  
ensure that the site plans and proposed license that was considered as part of the 
planning process is similar to the operation ultimately licensed by the MNR&F. 
To address this issue we would propose that the ARA and Provincial Standards be 
updated to provide for a class of prescribed conditions that reflect the operational 
characteristics that the zoning approval relied upon. These conditions would be 
identified on the site plans as municipally significant and would require municipal 
support to amend. 

    
In addition to the above, it is recommended that the Ministry of Natural Resources    
and Forestry work with the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing to remove the 
characterization of aggregate extraction as an interim land use in the Provincial Policy 
Statement unless the province is considering the introduction of expiry dates for both 
aggregate licences and zoning approvals. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
The Township supports TAPMO’s position regarding changes to the municipal portion 
of the annual fees. 
 
Resolution No. 2015-473:   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

   Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

That Report ADM-2015-021 regarding Aggregate Resources Act Review – Blueprint for 
Change – County Report PD2015-37 be received; and 
 
That the County be advised that the Township supports the recommendations outlined 
in County Report PD2015-37 in addition to the recommendations contained in Report 
ADM-2015-021, as amended; and 
 
That the Township submit its comments to the Province prior to December 15, 2015. 
 
CARRIED 

 
4. Planning and Building Department  

 
(a) Report PD-2015-027 – Agreement with Andrea Stacia Clarke – Part Lot 20, 

Concession 9  
 
Resolution No. 2015-474:   Moved by Councillor Fielding and  
 Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
December 2, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 7 of 12 
 

That Report PD-2015-027 regarding the Agreement with Andrea Stacia Clarke – Part 
Lot 20, Concession 9, municipally known as 7632 Wellington Road 34, be received; 
and 
 
That Council enact a By-law to authorize the entering into of an Agreement with 
Andrea Stacia Clarke. 
 
CARRIED 
 
(b) Report PD-2015-028 – Site Plan Agreement – 2354084 Ontario Limited - Property 

described as Puslinch Concession 8, Part lot 25, Parts 1, 2, 3 and 4, RP 61R-
11888. (Mammoet)  

 
Resolution No. 2015-475:   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

 Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 
That Report PD-2015-028 regarding Site Plan Agreement – 2354084 Ontario Limited – 
Part Lot 25, Concession 8, Parts 1, 2, 3 and 4, RP 61R-11888 (Mammoet) be received; 
and 
 
That Council pass a By-law to authorize the entering into of an amending Site Plan 
Agreement with 2354084 Ontario Limited as outlined in Report PD-2015-028; and 
 
That Council approves the release of the securities in the amount of $231,582.35 upon: 
 
• registration of the amending agreement; and 
• conveyance of the existing .3 m reserve as described as Parts 2 and 4 on 

Reference Plan 61R-11888 in accordance with Schedule D of the Site Plan 
Agreement 

• receipt of confirmation from the Finance Department that all invoices related to the 
administration of the agreement and amendments thereto have been paid. 

 
CARRIED  
 

5. Roads & Parks Department  
  

(a) Report PW-2015-006– Request for Speed Limit Reduction  
 
Councillor Bulmer noted that the speed spy results were obtained during the 
weekdays of Sunday, Monday and Tuesday, and resident’s concerns expressed in 
their correspondence were with respect to traffic volumes on Wednesdays, Fridays 
and Saturdays and inquired of staff as to whether the data collected from the speed 
spy would change the results of the TAC Calculations. 
 
Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk advised that staff was not in attendance to provide 
comments to the contents of the report.     
 
Resolution No. 2015-476:   Moved by Councillor Roth and  

Seconded by Councillor Bulmer  
 
That Report PW-2015-006 be deferred to the December 18, 2015 Council meeting. 
 
CARRIED. 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
December 2, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 8 of 12 
 

 
6. Recreation Department 

 
(a) Report REC-2015-010 – 2016 Shinny/Sticks and Pucks and Holiday Ice Skating – 

Optimist Recreation Centre  
 
Resolution No. 2015-477:   Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 

That Report REC-2015-010 regarding 2016 shinny hockey and sticks and pucks at 
Optimist Recreation Centre be received. 
 
CARRIED  
 

7. Mayor’s Updates  
 

None.  
    

9. NOTICE OF MOTION:  
  
None.  
 

10. COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 
(a) Puslinch Heritage Committee – July 27, 2015  
 
Resolution No. 2015-478:   Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  

Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 
That Council hereby receives the following minutes as information:  

 
(a) Puslinch Heritage Committee – July 27, 2015. 

 
CARRIED 
 

11. MUNICIPAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Government Delegation Requests – Ontario Good Roads and ROMA Conference  
 
Councillor Fielding suggested that the Township request delegations with the Minister of 
Transportation, Minister of Finance and Premier of Ontario with respect to the Highway 6 
By-Pass project.   
 
Mayor Lever requested that delegation requests be prepared for the suggested Ministries 
and that copies of the delegations be provided to Wellington Halton Hills MPP, Ted Arnott 
and other members of Puslinch Council for their information.  
 
Parks Master Plan  
 
Councillor Bulmer advised that he was encouraged by the large turnout and the amount of 
thoughtful discussions from the various participants who attended the Parks Master Plan 
held at the Optimist Recreation Centre on Thursday, November 26, 2015.    
 
Staff and Volunteer Appreciation Night  
 
Councillor Stokley and Mayor Lever thanked the organizing committee for an outstanding 
job at the Staff and Volunteer Appreciation Night held at the Puslinch Community Centre on 
Friday, November 27, 2015.    
 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
December 2, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 9 of 12 
 

Pickleball  
 
Councillor Stokley advised those in attendance that the open house for pickleball held on 
November 30 and December 2nd at the Optimist Recreation Centre was well attended and 
an additional day will be held on December 4th.  Councillor Stokley invited those in 
attendance to come and give pickleball a try.   
 
AMO Conference  
 
Mayor Lever advised that he attended the AMO 2015 Ontario West Municipal Conference 
in London on November 20, 2015.  Mayor Lever advised that at the conference he attended 
a session on Rural Renaissance – Creative Practices in Rural Communities and a 
presentation from MPAC regarding an update on MPAC activities including the Notice roll 
out, assessment growth and service level agreements.   
 
Cambridge East Corridor Public Meeting  
 
Mayor Lever advised that he has received notification that the City of Cambridge will be 
holding a Public meeting on December 9, 2015 from 5:00 to 8:00 p.m. at the Cambridge 
Golf Club.     
 

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
None.  
 

13. CLOSED MEETING 
 

Council was in closed session from 12:02 p.m. to 12:49 p.m.  
Council recessed from 12:50 p.m. to 1:00 p.m. 

 
(a) Confidential verbal report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk regarding litigation or 

potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board and advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose – Reid – 7827 Wellington Rd. 
36.  

 
(b) Confidential Report from Council regarding personal matters about an identifiable 

individual including municipal or local board employees –  Chief Administrative 
Officer Performance Review. 

 
(c) Confidential Verbal report regarding personal matters about an identifiable individual 

including municipal or local board employees – Citizen Appointments to Committees  
 
 

Resolution No. 2015-479:     Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
 Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 

That Council shall go into closed session under Section 239 of the Municipal Act for the 
purpose of: 

 
 
(a) Confidential verbal report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk regarding litigation or 

potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board and advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose – Reid – 7827 Wellington Rd. 
36.  

 
(b) Confidential Report from Council regarding personal matters about an identifiable 

individual including municipal or local board employees –  Chief Administrative 
Officer Performance Review. 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
December 2, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 10 of 12 
 

 
(c) Confidential Verbal report regarding personal matters about an identifiable individual 

including municipal or local board employees – Citizen Appointments to Committees.  
 

CARRIED 
 

Resolution No. 2015-480    Moved by Councillor Roth and  
 Seconded by Councillor Stokley 

 
That Council move into open session. 
 
CARRIED 

 
(a) Confidential verbal report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk regarding litigation or potential 

litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the municipality or 
local board and advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, including 
communications necessary for that purpose – Reid – 7827 Wellington Rd. 36.  
 
Resolution No. 2015-481    Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

  Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

That Council receive the Confidential verbal report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk 
regarding litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative 
tribunals affecting the municipality or local board and advice that is subject to Solicitor-
Client privilege, including communications necessary for that purpose – Reid – 7827 
Wellington Rd. 36.; and  
 
That Staff proceed as directed.  
 
CARRIED  

 
(b) Confidential Report from Council regarding personal matters about an identifiable 

individual including municipal or local board employees –  Chief Administrative Officer 
Performance Review. 
 

 
Resolution No. 2015-482:   Moved by Councillor Fielding and  
           Seconded by Councillor Stokley    

 
That the Confidential Report from Council regarding personal matters about an identifiable 
individual including municipal or local board employees –  Chief Administrative Officer 
Performance Review be received. 
 
CARRIED 
 
(c) Confidential Verbal report regarding personal matters about an identifiable individual 

including municipal or local board employees – Citizen Appointments to Committees. 
 

Resolution No. 2015-483:   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
           Seconded by Councillor Fielding    
 
That Council receive the Confidential Verbal report regarding personal matters about an 
identifiable individual including municipal or local board employees – Citizen Appointments 
to Committees.  
 
CARRIED 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
December 2, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 11 of 12 
 

 
14. BY-LAWS:  

 
(a) A by-law to amend By-Law 62/15 to appoint a Risk Management Official and Risk 

Management Inspector and alternates for the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch.   
 

(b) A by-law to appoint members to the Planning Development and Advisory Committee - 
Committee of Adjustments and amend By-Law 09/15.  

 
Council inquired as to the term of the appointment of a member of Council to the 
Committee.  

 
Karen Landry CAO/Clerk advised that in reviewing the terms of reference, the appointment 
of a member Council is to be for a one year term, and the non-members of Council for a 
term of Council.   

 
Ms. Landry recommended that Council approve the passing of the by-law and that staff 
would make the appropriate amendments to the By-law and Council would consider a 
Council appointment to the Committee at their next meeting of Council.   

 
(c) A by-law to appoint members to the Puslinch Recreation Committee and amend By-Law 

10/15.  
 
 
Resolution 2015-484:    Moved by Councillor Roth and  

Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 
 

That the following By-law be taken as read three times and finally passed in open Council: 
 
(a) By-law 67/15 being a by-law to amend By-Law 62/15 to appoint a Risk Management 

Official and Risk Management Inspector and alternates for the Corporation of the 
Township of Puslinch.   
 

(b) By-law 68/15 being a by-law to appoint members to the Planning Development and 
Advisory Committee - Committee of Adjustments and amend By-Law 09/15.  
  

(c) By-law 69/15 being a by-law to appoint members to the Puslinch Recreation Committee 
and amend By-Law 10/15.      

 
CARRIED 
 

    
15. CONFIRMING BY-LAW  

 
(a) By-Law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the Township of 

Puslinch  
 

Resolution 2015-485:    Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  
Seconded by Councillor Roth 

 
That the following By-law be taken as read three times and finally passed in open Council: 
 
(a) By-Law 70/15 being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation 

of the Township of Puslinch at its meeting held on the 2nd day of December, 2015. 
 
CARRIED  

 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
December 2, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 12 of 12 
 

 
16.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 

Resolution No. 2015-486: Moved by Councillor Roth and  
         Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 

 
That Council hereby adjourns at 2:41 p.m. 
    
CARRIED 

 
   ________________________________________ 

    Dennis Lever, Mayor 
    

 ________________________________________ 
  Karen Landry, CAO Clerk 



WHAT TO EXPECT: The Township of Puslinch invites you to participate in a Public Open House 
to develop a “shared vision” for our first Community Based Strategic Plan. 

 
 Since we received your input from our public consultations on September 9 

& 10, Dr. John Whitesell has worked with Council members and senior staff to 
identify the Mission and the Strategic Priorities for the Township. The Com-
munity Improvement Plan, Master Fire Plan and the Parks & Recreation Plan 
are being approved and integrated into the CBSP this fall/winter. Now, it’s 
time to develop a “shared vision” for Puslinch and we need your involvement.  

 
 The 90-minute consultation session will start with a presentation by John to 

update you on our progress with the CBSP and why a “shared vision” is so im-
portant. The remainder of the evening will resemble a workshop with plenty 
of interaction and stimulating discussions. We are expecting a large turnout 
for this event and that is why we will be meeting at the Puslinch Community 
Centre.  

 
 Your participation is a key element in the development of the “shared vision” 

for the Community Based Strategic Plan and we are looking forward to  
seeing you! 

DATE  |  TIME:  Thursday January 14, 2016 —7:00 pm - 8:30 pm

  

LOCATION:  Puslinch Community Centre
 Township of Puslinch
 Brock Road South
 Puslinch, ON  N0B 2C0 
 519-763-1226 ext. 214

You are invited to participate in

A Public Open House

to develop

A “shared vision” for the
Community Based Strategic Plan (CBSP)  
for The Township of Puslinch



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

 
  

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 
 

Proposed 2016 Operating and Capital Budget 
 
You are invited to attend a Public Information Meeting on January 21, 2016, as the Township of 
Puslinch is seeking your input and comments on the proposed 2016 Operating and Capital 
Budget. 
 
Your attendance and comments at this meeting are welcome as it is your opportunity to learn 
more about the proposed by-law and policies and express any opinions that you may have.  
 
 
Date:   Thursday, January 21, 2016 
Time:  7:00 p.m.  
Place:  Council Chambers, Township of Puslinch, 7404 Wellington Rd 34  
 
Additional Information: 
 
For further information or to obtain a copy of the proposed 2016 Operating and Capital Budget, 
please visit the Township’s website at www.puslinch.ca or contact the Township at (519)-763-
1226 ext. 222.  
 
 

















































































































1 

REPORT FIN-2015-038 

TO: Mayor and Members of Council 

FROM: Paul Creamer, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

MEETING DATE: December 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: Annual Indexing of Development Charges  
File No. F20 MMA 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Report FIN-2015-038 regarding the Annual Indexing of Development Charges be 
received. 

PURPOSE  

To provide the Development Charge rates for 2016. The rates are determined by 
applying the Construction Price Index to the 2015 rates.  

BACKGROUND 

Development Charges are collected for the Township under By-law 054/14. Section 5 of 
the Township of Puslinch’s By-law states that the development charges imposed shall 
be adjusted annually, without amendment to this By-law, on January 1st of each year, in 
accordance with the prescribed index in the Act.  

The Development Charges Act, 1997, s.7. states the following: 

“The Statistics Canada Quarterly, Construction Price Statistics, catalogue 
number 62-007 is prescribed as the index for the purposes of paragraph 10 of 
subsection 5 (1) of the Act. O. Reg. 82/98, s. 7.” 



2 
 

DISCUSSION 
 
The adjustments are made based on the most recent twelve-month change in the 
Statistics Canada Quarterly, “Construction Price Statistics” (catalogue number 62-007). 
The index has increased by 1.80% from the third (3rd) quarter of 2014 to the third (3rd) 
quarter of 2015.  

Therefore, Township of Puslinch staff will implement an indexing factor increase of 
1.80% effective January 1, 2016. Schedule 1, Table 1 shows the current rates for 2015 
and Table 2 shows the indexed rates for 2016. 

Residential Development: $4,817/dwelling unit * 1.018 = $4,904/dwelling unit 

Non-Residential Development: $2.25/square foot * 1.018 = $2.29/square foot 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Development Charges are an important way of funding facilities and services directly 
related to new development in the Township of Puslinch. The annual indexing provision 
in By-Law 054/14 helps to offset increases to initial development cost estimates 
identified for various growth-related capital projects.  

 
APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND REQUIREMENTS  
 
As per Section 7 of the Development Charges Act, 1997, the Statistics Canada 
Quarterly, Construction Price Statistics, catalogue number 62-007 is prescribed as the 
index for purpose of paragraph 10 of subsection 5 (1) of the Act. O. Reg. 82/98, s. 7. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Schedule 1: Schedule of Development Charges 

Schedule 2: Non-residential Building Construction Price Index – Not seasonally 
adjusted 

 



Schedule 1

Table 1
Schedule of Development Charges

January 1, 2015 ‐ December 31, 2015
RESIDENTIAL NON‐RESIDENTIAL

Single and Semi‐
Detached Dwelling

Apartments ‐ 2 
Bedrooms +

Apartments ‐ Bachelor 
and 1 Bedroom Other Multiples

(per ft2 of Gross 
Floor Area)

Municipal Wide Services:
Roads and Related $2,798 $1,695 $1,147 $2,127 $1.62

Fire Protection Services $1,459 $884 $598 $1,109 $0.46

Parks and Recreation $317 $192 $130 $241 $0.03

Administration ‐ Studies $243 $147 $100 $185 $0.14
Total Municipal Wide Services $4,817 $2,918 $1,975 $3,662 $2.25

Table 2
Schedule of Development Charges

January 1, 2016 ‐ December 31, 2016
RESIDENTIAL NON‐RESIDENTIAL

Single and Semi‐
Detached Dwelling

Apartments ‐ 2 
Bedrooms +

Apartments ‐ Bachelor 
and 1 Bedroom Other Multiples

(per ft2 of Gross 
Floor Area)

Municipal Wide Services:
Roads and Related $2,848 $1,726 $1,168 $2,165 $1.65

Fire Protection Services $1,485 $900 $609 $1,129 $0.47

Parks and Recreation $323 $195 $132 $245 $0.03

Administration ‐ Studies $247 $150 $102 $188 $0.14
Total Municipal Wide Services $4,904 $2,971 $2,011 $3,728 $2.29

Service

Service



Schedule 2



P preliminary 

Source(s): CANSIM table 327-0043. 

Date modified: 

2015-11-10 

Schedule 2



































































































 

1 
  

 REPORT ADM-2015-024 

 

TO:  Mayor and Members of Council 
 
FROM: Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk 
 
DATE:  December 16, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Public Sector and MPP Accountability and Transparency Act Update  
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

That Report ADM-2015-024 regarding the Public Sector and MPP Accountability and 
Transparency Act Update be received; and 
 
That staff report back to Council within the first quarter of 2016 with a proposed 
Municipal Complaints Policy. 

DISCUSSION 

Purpose 
 

The purpose of this Report is to provide an update regarding a Township appointed 
Ombudsman. 

Background 
 
Bill 8 was introduced in July 2014 with the purpose of increasing the accountability and 
transparency of government and its elected representatives.  There are two schedules 
(Schedules 6 and 9) in Bill 8 that have a direct impact on the Township and come into 
effect on January 1, 2016.  The Bill is titled the “Public Sector and MPP Accountability 

and Transparency Act, 2014”. 

Jurisdiction of the Ombudsman 

 
The Ombudsman Act has been amended to expand the jurisdiction of the Provincial 
Ombudsman to include municipalities, local boards and municipally –controlled 
corporations, with some exceptions as set out in the regulation. 
 



 

2 
  

The amendments set out specific circumstances where the Provincial Ombudsman may 
conduct an investigation where there is a municipal ombudsman.  The Provincial 
Ombudsman may consider the merits of conducting an investigation when: 
 

1. A complaint was made to the municipal ombudsman and he/she refused to 
investigate or has conducted and concluded an investigation; or 

2. The time for bringing a complaint to the municipal ombudsman has expired. 
 
If the Provincial Ombudsman decides to conduct an investigation into a matter under a 
Municipal Ombudsman’s jurisdiction, he/she must inform the head of the institution 

before commencing the investigation.  The institution is provided with an opportunity to 
make representations to the Provincial Ombudsman if the report or the 
recommendations will adversely affect the municipality.   

Appointment of an Ombudsman 

 
As of January 1, 2016, the Ombudsman can begin accepting, resolving and 
investigating complaints about municipalities under the Act  
 
The County is not proceeding with the appointment of an Ombudsman.  Outlined below 
is a summary of the respective staff recommendation being taken by the other 
Wellington County municipalities to Council with regard to the appointment of an 
Ombudsman. 
 
Municipality Recommendation 

Guelph/Eramosa Ontario Ombudsman 
Erin (information not available at the time of 

writing the report) 
Wellington North Ontario Ombudsman 
Minto Ontario Ombudsman 
Centre Wellington Ontario Ombudsman 
Mapleton Ontario Ombudsman 
 
In the absence of not appointing an Ombudsman the provincial Ombudsman by default 
is appointed as the Township’s Ombudsman. 

Next Steps 

 
Staff will continue to monitor developments regarding municipal complaints 
management system requirements and will evaluate the applicability of the potential 
utilization of the “Call Manager” module in Keystone.  Keystone is the software the 

Township utilizes to provide a cost effective integrated solution for managing municipal 
services such as: 
 



 

3 
  

Accounts Payable Accounts Receivable  Animal Licensing 
Building Department Facility Scheduler Fixed Assets 
Cash Receipts Property Information General Ledger 
 

Staff will report back to Council early in 2016 with a proposed Municipal Complaints 
Policy. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

Not applicable at this time. 

APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND REQUIREMENTS  

 

Public Sector and MPP Accountability and Transparency Act, 2014 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

 

Schedule A – Ombudsman Ontario correspondence dated November 30, 2015 
 
 



SCHEDULE "A" 















1 
 

REPORT PD-2015-029 
 

TO:   Mayor and Members of Council 
 
FROM:  Kelly Patzer, Development Coordinator 
 
MEETING DATE: December 16, 2015 
  
SUBJECT: Site Plan Agreement – 2120826 Ontario Ltd., property described as 

Concession 7, Rear Part Lot 20, RP-61R-8086, Part 1, municipally 
known as 20 Brock Road N, Township of Puslinch. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Report PD-2015-029 regarding the Site Plan Agreement 2120826 Ontario Ltd., 
property described as Concession 7, Rear Part Lot 20, RP-61R-8086, Part 1, 
municipally known as 20 Brock Road N, Township of Puslinch, be received; and 

That Council pass a by-law to authorize the entering into and the execution of a Site 
Plan Agreement with 2120826 Ontario Ltd. 

DISCUSSION 

Purpose: 

The subject property is located at 20 Brock Road N. It has a lot area of approximately 
1.87 hectares (4.62 acres).  Development under this Site Plan Agreement will be to add 
a 2,298.98 square metre (24,735 square foot) warehouse building addition. 

 



2 

Background: 

The property is located in a site plan control area.  The site plan control process was 
initiated in September 2015, after the rezoning on the lands for the use was approved 
and lot line adjustment incorporating the lands for the addition was finalized and 
registered. The development consists of constructing an addition to the existing 
warehouse. 

All site deficiencies recorded with the original Site Plan have been included in the new 
site plan agreement for development. 

The owner, 2120826 Ontario Ltd., is required to provide securities for the project in the 
amount of $103,573. Once Council authorizes the entering into the agreement, 
Township Staff will ensure securities are collected prior to the signing and registration of 
the agreement. Cash in lieu of parkland dedication is not required for the development 
as it is an addition to an existing building. 

Site Plan Control: 

The Township has received satisfactory comments and approvals from the peer review 
team of consultants and does not have any outstanding concerns entering into a Site 
Plan Agreement with the owner. 

Function Body Approval 
Township Hydro-geologist Harden Environmental Approval Received 
Township Engineers GM BluePlan Approval Received 
Township Fire Department Puslinch Fire and Rescue Approval Received 
Township Ecologist GWS Approval Received 
Planners Wellington County Approval Received 
Road Authority (Brock Rd.) County of Wellington No Objections 
Conservation Authority Grand River CA Approval Received 

Applicable Legislation and Requirements: 

Township of Puslinch Site Plan Control By-law 16/08 

Township of Puslinch Zoning By-law 19/85 

Attachments: 

Site Plan Agreement – Schedule A 



SITE PLAN AGREEMENT Page 2 

(complete and insert Document General Page as Page 1) 

TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
SITE PLAN AGREEMENT 

B E T W E E N: 
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

- and -  
2120826 ONTARIO LTD. 

I N D E X 
Page No. 

ARTICLE 1 - IDENTIFICATION OF LANDS APPROVED FOR DEVELOPMENT ..................................................................................... 3

1.1 Legal description ............................................................................................................................................................................................ 3

ARTICLE 2 - IDENTIFICATION OF PLAN(S) .................................................................................................................................................. 3

2.1 Approved plan(s) ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 3
2.2 Filing of plan(s).............................................................................................................................................................................................. 3

ARTICLE 3 - SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................................................................................ 3

3.1 Additional requirements and provisions ......................................................................................................................................................... 3
3.2 Current Deficiencies ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 3

ARTICLE 4 - IMPLEMENTATION OF PLAN(S) .............................................................................................................................................. 4

4.1 Developer's covenant to implement plan(s) .................................................................................................................................................... 4
4.2 Township's right of entry ................................................................................................................................................................................ 4
4.3 Stop work orders ............................................................................................................................................................................................ 4
4.4 Notice to comply ............................................................................................................................................................................................ 4
4.5  Plan revisions during construction ............................................................................................................................................................... 4

ARTICLE 5 - FINANCIAL ASSURANCES ......................................................................................................................................................... 4

5.1 Security requirement - public lands ................................................................................................................................................................ 4
5.2 Security requirement - subject lands ............................................................................................................................................................... 4
5.3 Township's right to draw upon security .......................................................................................................................................................... 4
5.4 Release of Security ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 4
5.5 Township’s Expenses ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 5

ARTICLE 6 - INDEMNIFICATION ..................................................................................................................................................................... 5

6.1 Developer's agreement to indemnify ............................................................................................................................................................... 5

ARTICLE 7 - LIABILITY INSURANCE ............................................................................................................................................................. 5

7.1 When liability insurance required ................................................................................................................................................................... 5

ARTICLE 8 - TIME LIMITS FOR COMPLETION ........................................................................................................................................... 5

8.1 Consequences of delay ................................................................................................................................................................................... 5
8.2 Phasing of Site Development ......................................................................................................................................................................... 5

ARTICLE 9 - MAINTENANCE OBLIGATIONS ................................................................................................................................................ 5

9.1 General covenant to maintain and repair ........................................................................................................................................................ 5
9.2 Specific maintenance obligations ................................................................................................................................................................... 5
9.3 Off-site obligations......................................................................................................................................................................................... 6

ARTICLE 10 - CONVEYANCES AND EASEMENTS ........................................................................................................................................ 6

10.1 Developer's obligation to provide ............................................................................................................................................................. 6

ARTICLE 11 - ENCUMBRANCERS' CONSENT AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT ............................................................................................ 6

11.1 All encumbrancers to consent prior to permit issuance ............................................................................................................................. 6

ARTICLE 12 - REGISTRATION OF AGREEMENT ......................................................................................................................................... 6

12.1 Registration prior to permit issuance ........................................................................................................................................................ 6

ARTICLE 13 - GENERAL PROVISIONS ............................................................................................................................................................ 6

13.1 Notices ..................................................................................................................................................................................................... 6
13.2 Township costs recoverable like taxes ...................................................................................................................................................... 7
13.3 Waiver ..................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7
13.4 Covenants as restrictive covenants ........................................................................................................................................................... 7
13.5 No permit if money owed to Township .................................................................................................................................................... 7
13.6 Number and Gender ................................................................................................................................................................................. 7
13.7 Headings and Index .................................................................................................................................................................................. 7
13.8 No assignment without consent ................................................................................................................................................................ 7
13.9 Ultra vires terms ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 7
13.10 Developer's acceptance of agreement ....................................................................................................................................................... 7
13.11 Enurement ................................................................................................................................................................................................ 7

SCHEDULE "A" Description of Lands .............................................................................................................................................................. 9 
SCHEDULE "B" Description of Approved Plan(s) .......................................................................................................................................... 10 
SCHEDULE "C" Additional Requirements ...................................................................................................................................................... 11 
SCHEDULE "D" Conveyances and Easements required .................................................................................................................................. 13 
SCHEDULE “E” Spill Management and Contingency Plan .............................................................................................................................. 14 
SCHEDULE “F” Deficiencies .......................................................................................................................................................................... 15 
SCHEDULE “G” Other Agreements ................................................................................................................................................................ 16 

Schedule A - Site Plan Agreement



SITE PLAN AGREEMENT  Page 3 
 
 

 
 TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

 SITE PLAN AGREEMENT 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT made this ______ day of _____________________, 2015, pursuant to Section 41 of the 
Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, as amended. 
 
B E T W E E N: 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH. 
(hereinafter called the "Township") 

 
 PARTY OF THE FIRST PART 
 

- and - 
 
 

2120826 ONTARIO LTD. 
(hereinafter called the "Developer") 

 
 PARTY OF THE SECOND PART 
 
 
W H E R E A S: 
 
A. Developer is the owner of the property described in Schedule "A" to this Agreement which is the subject matter 

of an application for Site Plan Approval pursuant to section 41 of the Planning Act; 
 
B. The property is within a designated site plan control area and the Township requires that the Developer enter 

into a written agreement to identify approved plans, drawings and specifications and to require that the property 
be developed and maintained in accordance with the approved documents. 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE this Agreement witnesseth that in consideration of the premises, other good and valuable 
consideration and the sum of Two Dollars ($2.00) of lawful money of Canada, now paid by each of the parties hereto to 
each of the other parties hereto (the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged), the parties agree as follows:  
 
ARTICLE 1 - IDENTIFICATION OF LANDS APPROVED FOR DEVELOPMENT 
 
1.1 Legal description 
 

The Developer's property which is the subject matter of this agreement is described in Schedule "A" attached 
(herein called "the Lands"). 

 
ARTICLE 2 - IDENTIFICATION OF PLAN(S) 
 
2.1 Approved plan(s) 
 

The Developer in making application for site plan approval has agreed to provide to the satisfaction of the 
Township, plan or plans showing the location of all buildings, structures, facilities, works and site elevations 
and services existing and proposed and, where required, drawings showing plan, elevation and cross-section 
views for each building or structure and to include all matters as contemplated by section 41 of the Planning 
Act. The plan(s) and drawings described in Schedule "B" [hereinafter called the "Approved Plan(s)] shall be 
deemed to have been approved by the Township upon execution and registration of this Agreement. 

 
2.2 Filing of plan(s) 
 

Ten (or such greater number as shall be requested by the Township) copies of the Approved Plan(s) shall be 
filed with the Township's Clerk. 

 
ARTICLE 3 - SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
3.1 Additional requirements and provisions 
 

Notwithstanding the approval by the Township of the plans and drawings described in Schedule "B" the parties 
agree that the additional requirements referred to in Schedule "C" (if any) shall apply to the development of the 
Lands in addition to the information shown on the Approved Plan(s) and in the event of a conflict between the 
provisions of the Approved Plans and Schedule “C” then the provisions of the latter shall prevail. 

 
3.2 Current Deficiencies   
  

The Developer shall complete all deficiencies from the previous Site Plan as noted in the letter from GM BluePlan 
Engineering, dated May 5, 2014 attached as Schedule “F”.  



SITE PLAN AGREEMENT  Page 4 
 
ARTICLE 4 - IMPLEMENTATION OF PLAN(S) 
 
4.1 Developer's covenant to implement plan(s) 
 

The Developer covenants and agrees that the buildings, structures and all of the facilities, works and features 
illustrated on the Approved Plan(s) and the additional requirements set out in Schedule "C", if any, shall be 
constructed, installed, performed or provided as the case may be at the Developer's sole risk and expense and to 
the satisfaction of the Township.  

 
4.2 Township's right of entry 
 

The Township shall have a right of entry upon the Lands, through employees, agents or contractors to ensure 
that the provisions of this agreement are complied with at all times. 

 
4.3 Stop work orders 
 

The Township's Chief Building Official shall treat a breach of the terms of this Agreement or covenants 
contained herein in a manner similar to a breach of the Township's Building By-law or the Ontario Building 
Code and shall issue a stop work order until such breach is rectified. The Developer acknowledges that the 
requirements of this Agreement constitute applicable law for purposes of the Building Code Act. 

 
4.4 Notice to comply 
 

In the event that the Township gives written notice to the Developer or the then-registered owner of the Lands 
that it has failed to construct, provide or maintain any matter or thing illustrated on the Approved Plan(s) or 
required by this Agreement, and if the Developer or then-registered owner fails to construct, provide or maintain 
such required matter or thing within thirty (30) days of the date that such notice is mailed by prepaid registered 
mail to such person at the address for such person set out in Article 13.1 or as shown on the most-recently 
revised assessment roll then the Township may enter upon the Lands, through employees, agents or contractors 
and construct, provide or maintain such matter or thing which had been specified in the notice at the expense of 
then-registered owner of the Land.  
 

4.5          Plan revisions during construction 
 

The Township’s Chief Building Official shall have the authority to approve minor amendments to the 
Approved Site Plan due to site-specific conditions discovered during construction. The Developer shall 
submit any additional information required to support amendments to the Approved Site Plan as required by 
the Chief Building Official or the Township’s Engineer. Any amendments shall conform to applicable 
Township of Puslinch standards. Should amendments be approved by the Chief Building Official during 
construction, the Developer shall submit an As-Built Plan including all approved changes.   
 

 
ARTICLE 5 - FINANCIAL ASSURANCES 
 
5.1 Security requirement - public lands 
 

In the event any works are to be performed on municipally or publicly-owned property of any kind which may 
service the subject lands, the Developer shall, at the time of signing this Agreement and prior to the 
commencement of work, supply the Township with an unconditional irrevocable Letter of Credit from a 
chartered Canadian bank, in a form and an amount satisfactory to the Township sufficient to guarantee the 
satisfactory completion of the works to be constructed or performed by the Developer on municipally or 
publicly-owned lands and further guaranteeing the workmanship and materials of all such works and matters. 
The unconditional irrevocable Letter of Credit shall further guarantee payment to the Township of all inspection 
or other costs that the Township may incur in connection with such works or the preparation and 
implementation of this Agreement. 

 
5.2 Security requirement - subject lands 
 

In addition to the security to be provided to the Township pursuant to Article 5.1, the Developer shall at the 
time of signing this Agreement and prior to the commencement of work, unless such requirement is specifically 
waived in writing by the Township, supply the Township with an unconditional irrevocable Letter of Credit 
from a chartered Canadian bank, in a form and an amount satisfactory to the Township sufficient to guarantee 
the satisfactory completion of the work and facilities to be provided on the Lands pursuant to the Approved 
Plan(s) and this Agreement and further guaranteeing the workmanship and materials of all such works and 
matters. The unconditional irrevocable Letter of Credit shall further guarantee payment to the Township of all 
inspection or other costs that the Township may incur in connection with such works or the preparation and 
implementation of this Agreement. 

 
5.3 Township's right to draw upon security 
 

In the event that the Developer fails to comply with a notice given to him pursuant to Article 4.4 hereof the 
Township shall be at liberty to draw upon the security provided to it pursuant to this Article to pay for the cost 
of any work undertaken by it or on its behalf pursuant to such notice and to pay the costs incurred by the 
Township in the administration and implementation of this Agreement. 

 
 
5.4 Release of Security 
 



SITE PLAN AGREEMENT  Page 5 
 

The security provided under this Article, or the amount thereof remaining after draws referred to in Article 5.3, 
shall be delivered or repaid to the Developer after all of the works have been completed in each stage to the 
satisfaction of the Township’s authorized personnel. 

 
5.5 Township’s Expenses 
 

The Developer agrees to pay to the Township all reasonable costs incurred by the Township in connection with 
the development of this site which, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, shall include all expenses of 
the Township heretofore and hereinafter incurred for legal, engineering, surveying, planning and inspection 
services, extra Council meetings, if any, and employees’ extra time, if any, and shall pay such costs from time to 
time forthwith upon demand, provided, if such costs be not paid forthwith same shall bear interest from the date 
which is 10 days following the date of demand to the date of payment at two (2) percentage points in excess of 
prime rate of interest charged by the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce during such period. 

 
ARTICLE 6 - INDEMNIFICATION 
 
6.1 Developer's agreement to indemnify 
 

The Developer agrees on behalf of himself, its heirs, executors, administrators and assigns to save harmless and 
indemnify the Township, and, if applicable, the County of Wellington, and their respective officials employees 
and agents, from all losses, damages, costs, charges and expenses which may be claimed or recovered against 
the Township or the County of Wellington, as the case may be, by any person or persons arising either directly 
or indirectly as a result of any action taken by the Developer pursuant to or implementing the terms of this 
Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 7 - LIABILITY INSURANCE 
 
7.1 When liability insurance required 
 

In the event that work is to be performed by the Developer, its servants, agents or contractors on lands owned by 
the Township, or the County of Wellington, the Developer shall supply the Township with written evidence of a 
current comprehensive liability insurance policy in form satisfactory to the Township, holding the Township 
(and if applicable the County of Wellington) harmless for any and all claims for damages, injuries or losses in 
connection with the work done by or on behalf of the Developer, its servants, agents or contractors on or 
adjacent to the Lands in an amount of not less than Two Million ($2,000,000.00) Dollars inclusive. The 
Township (and if applicable the County of Wellington) are to be named as insured parties in the said policy. 

 
ARTICLE 8 - TIME LIMITS FOR COMPLETION 
 
8.1 Consequences of delay 
 

In the event that a building permit is not issued and construction commenced within one year from the date of 
this Agreement, or if the works and facilities contemplated in the Approved Plan(s) are not fully completed 
within two (2) years from the date of this Agreement, the conditions of approval and provisions of this 
Agreement will be reviewed and may be subject to revision by the Township by notice in writing to the 
Developer which revisions shall be accepted and implemented by the Developer. 
 

8.2 Phasing of Site Development 
 
The Developer agrees that all buildings, structures, works and features illustrated on the Approved Plan(s) shall 
represent the total development on the property. The Developer also agrees that any future development beyond 
the approved plans will be subject to any additional site plan agreements and provisions as required by the 
Township. 
 

ARTICLE 9 - MAINTENANCE OBLIGATIONS 
 
9.1 General covenant to maintain and repair 
 

The Developer agrees that the buildings, structures and all of the facilities, works and features illustrated on the 
Approved Plan(s) shall be maintained and kept in good repair at the Developer's sole risk and expense and to 
the satisfaction of the Township. In the event that the Township gives written notice to the Developer or the 
then-registered owner of the Lands that maintenance or repair of any matter required to be provided by this 
Agreement is to be undertaken, and if the Developer or then registered owner fails to undertake such required 
maintenance or repair within thirty (30) days of the date that such notice is mailed by prepaid registered mail to 
such person at the address for such person set out in Article 13.1 or as shown on the most-recently revised 
assessment roll then the Township may enter upon the Lands, through employees, agents or contractors and 
perform such maintenance or repairs which had been specified in the notice at the expense of then-registered 
owner of the Land. 

 
9.2 Specific maintenance obligations 
 

The Developer covenants with the Township as follows: 
 

(a) that it shall at all times maintain the installations, structures and facilities illustrated on the Approved 
Plan(s) and described in Schedule "C", if applicable, in good condition and repair; 



SITE PLAN AGREEMENT  Page 6 
 
 

(b) that at any time or times that the building(s) on the Lands are occupied or are in use it shall ensure that 
all driveways, parking spaces more specifically for staff and visitors as well as required access points are 
cleared of snow within twelve (12) hours of any major snow storm (which shall be deemed to be an 
accumulation in excess of 5cm of snow in any twenty-four hour period) and that if snow is stored on the Lands it 
shall ensure that it is stored in a location which does not reduce the number of staff and visitor parking spaces 
illustrated on the Approved Plan(s); alternatively it shall arrange for the removal of such snow at its sole 
expense. 

 
(c) that it shall ensure that all required signs, parking spaces and lane markings identified on the Approved 
Plan(s) are properly painted and maintained and that it shall ensure that each such sign and parking space or 
lane is clearly delineated at all times.  

 
In the event that the Developer, or then registered owner of the Lands, is in breach of any of the covenants in 
this Article then the provisions of Article 13.2 hereof shall apply. 
 

9.3 Off-site obligations 
 
The Developer shall adhere to the obligations set out in the Agreement between 2120826 Ontario Ltd. and R. & 
C. Job Holdings Inc., dated July 15, 2008 attached as Schedule “G”.  

 
ARTICLE 10 - CONVEYANCES AND EASEMENTS 
 
10.1 Developer's obligation to provide 
 

The Owner shall within a period of two (2) years from the date of execution of this agreement convey without 
charge to the Township or the County of Wellington, as the case may be, the lands and/or easements, if any, 
described in Schedule "D". The Developer shall pay all legal and survey costs associated with such conveyances 
and easements. The title to any land or easement so conveyed shall be certified to the applicable Transferee by 
Developer’s solicitor as being good and marketable and free from any restriction or encumbrance at 
Developer’s expense. 
 
The Township or the County of Wellington shall provide written notice to the Owner of the requirement to 
provide such conveyance or easement within the two (2) year period following execution of this agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 11 - ENCUMBRANCERS' CONSENT AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
11.1 All encumbrancers to consent prior to permit issuance 
 

The Developer shall at its cost have any person (herein called an "encumbrancer") having a mortgage, lien, right 
or encumbrance affecting the Lands execute this Agreement to consent to its terms or shall provide a registered 
postponement agreement wherein each such encumbrancer postpones his, her, or its interest in the said lands in 
favour of the Township's interest under this Agreement. No building permit will be issued for the Lands until 
this Article has been complied with. Wherever this Agreement is executed by an encumbrancer such person 
agrees that his, her or its interest in the Lands shall be subject to all terms of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 12 - REGISTRATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
12.1 Registration prior to permit issuance 
 

This Agreement will be registered against the title to the Lands and the Developer will pay for the cost of 
registration. 

 
ARTICLE 13 - GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
13.1 Notices 
 

Any notice, invoice or other writing required or permitted to be given pursuant to this agreement (including 
notice of a change of address) shall be deemed to have been given if delivered personally to the party or to an 
officer of the applicable corporation or if delivered by prepaid first class mail, on the third (3rd) day after 
mailing. The address for service of each of the parties is as follows: 

 
Developer:  2120826 Ontario Ltd. 
   20 Brock Road North 
   Guelph, ON N1H 6H9 
 
 
Township:  The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch 

7404 Wellington Road 34 
Guelph, ON  N1H 6H9 

 
 
To any other person: at the address shown for such person in the 

last revised assessment roll or the latest 
address for such person as shown in the 
Township's records. 

 
 



SITE PLAN AGREEMENT  Page 7 
 
 
13.2 Township costs recoverable like taxes 
 

Notwithstanding any other remedy available to the Township, the Developer acknowledges and agrees that any 
expense incurred by the Township in connection with the approval of the Approved Plans or the preparation, 
registration, administration, implementation and enforcement of this Agreement, and specifically the 
maintenance obligations in Article 9, may be recovered by the Township in like manner as municipal taxes 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 326 of the Municipal Act. 

 
13.3 Waiver 
 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the remedies of the Township under this Agreement are cumulative 
and the exercise by the Township of any right or remedy for the default or breach of any term, covenant, 
condition or agreement herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver or alter, affect or prejudice any 
other right or remedy or other rights or remedies, to which the Township may be lawfully entitled for the same 
default or breach; and any waiver by the Township of the strict observance, performance or compliance by the 
Developer or with any term, covenant, condition or agreement herein contained, or any indulgence granted by 
the Township to the Developer shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent default or breach by the 
Developer, nor entitle the Developer to any similar indulgence heretofore granted. 

 
13.4 Covenants as restrictive covenants 
 

So far as may be, the covenants of the Developer herein shall be restrictive covenants running with the land for 
the benefit of the adjoining lands of the Township or such of them as may be benefited thereby and shall be 
binding on the Developer, its heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns as owner and occupier of 
the said land from time to time. 

 
13.5 No permit if money owed to Township 
 

The Developer hereby agrees to pay all municipal taxes on the Lands which may be in arrears at the time of 
signing this Agreement and shall ensure that all taxes are paid up to date with respect to the Lands. Additionally, 
the Developer shall ensure that all taxes owing by him to the municipality on all other properties owned by the 
Developer elsewhere in the Township and any other accounts owing by him to the Township are also paid up to 
date. No building permit will be issued with respect to the Lands until this Article has been complied with. 

 
13.6 Number and Gender 
 

It is agreed between the parties hereto that the appropriate changes in the number and gender shall be implied 
where the context of this Agreement and any schedules hereto so require in order that the Agreement and any 
part thereof shall be construed to have its proper and reasonable meaning. 

 
13.7 Headings and Index  
 

All headings and sub-headings and the Index within this agreement are incorporated for ease of reference 
purposes only and do not form an integral part of the Agreement. 

 
13.8 No assignment without consent 
 

The Developer shall not assign this Agreement until all works and facilities required by this Agreement have 
been completed without the prior written consent of the Township, which consent will not be unreasonably 
withheld. 

 
13.9 Ultra vires terms 
 

If any term of this Agreement shall be found to be Ultra Vires of the Township, or otherwise unlawful, such 
term shall conclusively be deemed severable and the remainder of this Agreement mutatis mutandis shall be and 
remain in full force and effect. 

 
13.10 Developer's acceptance of agreement 
 

The Developer shall not call into question, directly or indirectly, in any proceedings whatsoever in law or in 
equity or before any administrative tribunal the right of the Township to enter into this Agreement and to 
enforce each and every term of this Agreement and this Agreement may be pleaded as an estoppel against the 
Developer in any such proceedings. 

 
13.11 Enurement 
 

This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto, their respective heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors and assigns. 

 



SITE PLAN AGREEMENT  Page 8 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals or where applicable have 
caused to be affixed their corporate seals under the hands of their duly authorized officers in that behalf. 
 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 
PUSLINCH 
per: 

 
 

_________________________________________________ 
Dennis Lever, Mayor 

 
per: 

 
 

_________________________________________________ 
Karen Landry,CAO/ Clerk  

 
I/We have authority to bind the Corporation 

 
 
SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED  2120826 ONTARIO LTD. 
in the presence of:    per: 

 
 
_________________________________________________ 

         Colin Job, President  
                                           

I/We have authority to bind the Corporation 
 



SITE PLAN AGREEMENT  Page 9 
 

SCHEDULE "A" 
 
 

DESCRIPTION OF LANDS 
 

 
Concession 7, Rear Part Lot 20, RP-61R-8086, Part 1, Township of Puslinch. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



SITE PLAN AGREEMENT  Page 10 
 

SCHEDULE "B" 
 
 

DESCRIPTION OF APPROVED PLANS 
 

 
DWG. NO. REV. NO. DATE DESCRIPTION PREPARED BY 

     

C1.1 5 April 4, 
2015 

Existing Conditions and 
Removals Plan  

MTE 

C2.1 5 Sep. 14, 
2015 Site Grading & Servicing Plan  MTE 

C2.2 4 Sept. 14, 
2015 Details & Notes Plan  MTE 

1 of 1 1 June 26, 
2015 Site Plan  MHBC 

L1 4 March 23, 
2015 

Landscape and Creek 
Enhancement Plan  MHBC 

A3.0 - May 25, 
2015 Elevations  Gateman Milloy 

A3.1 - May 25, 
2015 Elevations  Gateman Milloy  

SL.1 2 July 21, 
2015 Site Lighting Plan  Mighton Engineering  

  
 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PREVIOUSLY APPROVED PLANS 
 
 

DWG. NO. REV. NO. DATE DESCRIPTION PREPARED BY 
     

A-1 Issued July 10, 
2008 Site Plan   Stark Ireland Arch. Inc. 

SS-1 4 June 18, 
2008 Site Servicing & Grading Plan  W.G. Notenboom Engineer 

LP.1 5 May 23, 
2008 Landscape Plan  Salmona Tregunno Inc. 



SITE PLAN AGREEMENT  Page 11 
 

SCHEDULE "C" 
 
 

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS (in addition to matters shown on Approved Plan(s) 
 

1. Covenants and Restrictions to be Registered 
 

The Developer shall ensure that the covenants and restrictions set forth below shall be incorporated into every 
Agreement of Purchase and Sale and each Transfer [Deed] for a part of or an interest in the Lands: 
 
The purchaser/transferee covenants as follows: 
 
(i) the purchaser/transferee covenants and agrees that the grading and drainage including all swales and 

stormwater management system for the within-described land shall at all times conform to the Approved 
Site Plan for the Lands referred to in the Site Plan Agreement with the municipality and shall not be altered 
without the written approval of the municipality; 

 
(ii) the purchaser/transferee covenants and agrees under no circumstances shall roof water, surface water or 

ground water drains be connected to the sewage treatment and tile field systems; 
 

(iii) the purchaser/transferee covenants and agrees that the construction of any accessory buildings or structures 
(including swimming pools if permitted) shall require the approval of the Township; 

 
(iv) the purchaser/transferee covenants and agrees to maintain any fencing or retaining wall on the within-

described lands in good condition if such fencing or wall was erected as a requirement of the original site 
plan agreement affecting the lands and, when necessary, replace same from time to time with a fence or 
wall made of the same of similar materials and of the same standard as specified in the site plan agreement; 
and further covenants that it shall not construct any additional fences on the within described lands; 

 
(v) the purchaser/transferee acknowledges and agrees that the soils which are used to backfill around the 

foundation of the building(s) on the subject lands may subside after the date upon which a certificate has 
been issued indicating that the lands have been graded in accordance with the approved lot grading plan 
and the purchaser/transferee covenants that in such event he/she/they or it shall provide and place 
additional soils to ensure that the lot continues to be graded in accordance with the approved lot grading 
plan; 

 
(vi) the purchaser/transferee covenants and agrees to maintain all trees, shrubs and vegetation illustrated on the 

site plan affecting the lands in healthy condition and where such have died to replace same with plant 
materials of the same type as originally approved. 

 
Each of the above covenants and restrictions shall run with the title to the lands and are declared to be for the 
benefit of the Transferor’s remaining lands, the lands conveyed to the Township by the Transferor herein and for 
the benefit of the roads and streets abutting the within-described lands. 
 

2. Parkland Dedication 
 
The Developer is not required to pay cash in lieu of parkland dedication for the project.  
 

3. Stormwater Management 
 
If it is determined that the scope of the project impacts the stormwater drainage from the property, the Developer 
shall prepare a stormwater drainage plan and report for the approval of the Township of Puslinch, Grand River 
Conservation Authority, and the Ministry of the Environment (if applicable). 
 
The final stormwater drainage plan shall include: 
 

• the means by which potential contaminants from the site will be controlled and contained on-site to prevent 
any impact to the surface or groundwater regimes, and 

• an operation, maintenance, ground and surface water monitoring and contingency plan to ensure the 
proposed stormwater drainage system function in accordance with the approved design. 

•  
 The stormwater monitoring program shall consist of the following: 
 

a) a continuous water level monitoring device(s) situated within the stormwater management pond capable of 
recording hourly events and variations at atmosphere pressure levels. 

b) submission of an annual report to the Township outlining the estimated water discharged from the 
stormwater management pond as well as estimated recharge from within the infiltration gallery and the 
stormwater management pond. 

c) monitoring will occur for a period of five (5) years following completion of the site works. 
 

A Professional Engineer shall be retained by the Developer to perform site review for the construction of the 
stormwater drainage system and upon completion shall provide a letter of certification to the Township certifying 
that the stormwater drainage system has been constructed in accordance with the approved plans. 



SITE PLAN AGREEMENT  Page 12 
 

 
4. Landscaping 
 

All grassed areas shall include a minimum of 100mm of topsoil. 
 
Planting of trees and shrubs shall be provided by the developer in accordance with the approved site plan.  All 
plantings shall be located on the site in areas that do not obstruct sight visibility at entrances and shall not be 
located within a sight triangle area. 

 
5. Fencing 
 

Where applicable chainlink fencing (1.8 m high) shall be provided around the site and any stormwater management 
pond area. The fence shall have a lockable gate(s) of sufficient size (minimum 4 m) to provide for access and 
maintenance equipment access to the stormwater management pond. 
 
A solid privacy fence shall be installed to screen the outdoor storage area from all public roads. The privacy 
fencing shall be in addition to the natural material landscape screening. 
 

6. Garbage Enclosures 
 

Where an outdoor garbage storage area is proposed, the garbage container, receptacle, etc. shall be enclosed by a 
board fence, or similar solid construction, of sufficient height to provide a barrier to animals and a visual screen to 
the neighbouring properties and adjacent roads. The Township, prior to the construction of the enclosure, shall 
approve the exterior treatment materials, detailed design and standards of construction. 
 

7. Exterior Lighting 
 

Where exterior building lighting or area lighting is proposed, the lighting envelope shall be confined to the site 
and shall not spill over or cast a glare onto adjacent properties or abutting roads. 
 

8. Signs 
  

All signs shall be in accordance with the regulations of the Township and/or County of Wellington sign bylaw and 
setback requirements. Sign location and setback shall be approved prior to construction of the sign by the authority 
having jurisdiction. 
 

9. Certification of Works 
 
Prior to the final building inspection, the Developer’s consultant shall provide a letter of compliance to the 
Township Clerk certifying that: 

• the site grading and drainage,  
• the stormwater management facility 
• the sewage treatment system upgrades (if required), and 
• the fire protection system 
• the previous deficiencies have been completed as provided in Schedule “F” 

have been constructed in accordance with the approved plans. 
 

10. Storm Water Drainage Maintenance 
 
The Developer shall maintain the storm water drainage system in accordance with the approved site plan drawings. 
 

11. Exterior Storage 
 
The property shall be maintained in a tidy condition at all times. Abandoned vehicle parts, equipment, and other 
materials are not permitted onsite, unless placed within the refuse/garbage enclosures or within waste/recycling 
bins to the rear of the building in accordance with the approved site plan. 
 

12. Financial Security Deposit 
 

The Developer, at the time of signing the Site Plan Agreement, shall deposit an unconditional irrevocable Letter of 
Credit with the Township of Puslinch, to guarantee the construction of the on-site grading and drainage, services, 
landscaping, and stormwater management system. 
 
The letter of credit values shall be the sum of the following: 

a) 50% of site servicing costs. 50% of $137,090  $68,545 

b) 50% of landscaping costs 50% of $46,680  $23,340 

c) 5% of construction costs of items (a) and (b) for 
Township engineering review 5% of $183,770 = $9,188 

d) Site grading and drainage deposit = $2,000.00 per ha. 
(1 ha. minimum) 1.25 ha $2,500 = $2,500 

  Total Deposit $103,573 
The estimated value of the construction costs shall be determined by the Developer’s engineers and approved by 
the Township’s consulting engineers. 



SITE PLAN AGREEMENT  Page 13 
 

SCHEDULE “D” 
 
 

CONVEYANCES AND EASEMENTS REQUIRED 
 

 
Convey to the Township of Puslinch: 
 

No conveyances and easements are required. 
 
Convey to the County of Wellington 
 
 No conveyances and easement are required. 
 



SITE PLAN AGREEMENT  Page 14 
 

SCHEDULE “E” 
 
 

SPILL MANAGEMENT AND CONTINGENCY PLAN 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 





SITE PLAN AGREEMENT  Page 15 
 

 
SCHEDULE “F” 

 
DEFICIENCES  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 GUELPH | OWEN SOUND | LISTOWEL | KITCHENER | EXETER | HAMILTON | GTA 

650 Woodlawn Road West, Block C, Unit 2, Guelph, ON  N1K 1B8    P: 519.824-8150  F: 519.824-8089   www.GMBluePlan.ca 

 
 
 
    May 5, 2014 
    Our File: 108-006-2 
Township of Puslinch 
RR 3, 7404 Wellington Road 34 
Guelph, ON  N1H 6H9 
 
Attention: Robert Kelly 
 
   Re: Ren’s Pet Depot 
    Site Servicing and Grading Inspection 
 
Dear Mr. Kelly: 
 
On April 10, 2014, GM BluePlan Engineering staff were on-site to conduct an inspection of site grading and 
servicing. The site inspection was conducted with reference to the Site Servicing & Grading plan, Revision dated 
June 18, 2008 by W.G. Notenboom, Consulting Engineers and the Site Plan as prepared by Stark Ireland 
Architect Inc.. We also reviewed the Site Plan Agreement for this development and comments related to the 
agreement are also included below. The following deficiencies and concerns were noted and require attention: 
 
1) Storm Sewer  
 

a) CBMH 1  Parge between precast and moduloc 
 Remove gravel from sump 
 CBMH not located as shown on plan  

 
b) CB 2  CB not located as shown on plan  

 
c) Control 

Headwall 
 As per design, however top of bank is to meet outside of headwall as per figure 
 

d) MH 3  Parge between precast and moduloc 
 Remove debris from MH  

 
e) MH 2  Parge between precast and moduloc 

 Parge between bottom of moduloc and bottom of casting 
 Clean debris from sump 
 MH not located in plan location  
 Repair infiltration at outlet pipe  
 

f) CB 5  Pipe is 50 % full of water. Monitor to ensure infiltration gallery is working properly 
 



  Page 2 of 8 
 

GUELPH | OWEN SOUND | LISTOWEL | KITCHENER | EXETER | HAMILTON | GTA 

www.GMBluePlan.ca 

g) CB 4  Remove gravel from sump 
 Install new filter cloth 
 Pipe appears to be solid pipe, not perforated as per drawing detail 
 

h) CB 6  Structure is full of water to obvert of pipe 
 No sign of knock out in structure 

 
  

 
2) Sanitary / Septic  
 

a) Confirm location of sanitary manhole or cleanout servicing the warehouse building. 
 

3) General Grading 
 

a) A defined swale, along the North East side of the Commercial Building, does not appear to have been 
constructed as per the approved site servicing and grading plan  

b) Curb along south west edge of pavement and at loading dock has not been installed as per the approved 
site servicing and grading plan.  

c) Grading to be revised to match into top of bank elevation at Control Headwall as per the detail on the site 
servicing and grading plan.  

d) A low lying area, at north side of 1 storey metal clad building, west of revised sidewalk location requires 
re-grading. 

e) As Constructed plan to be submitted for revisions to site grading as per H. Groh (G&M) email dated May 
12,2009.  

 
4) Final Documentation 
 

a) Final certificates for works as per Schedule “C” of the Site Plan Agreement.  
 Item #4 – Provide letter of certification for SWM facility 
 

b) As per Schedule “C” Item 12, Certification of Works, Developers Engineering Consultant to  provide a 
letter of compliance to the Township to certify that the following:  
- Site grading and drainage 
- The SWM facility 
- The sewage treatment upgrades 
- The fire protection system  

 Has been constructed in accordance with the approved plans 
 

c) Provide an As Constructed Site Servicing and Grading Plan confirming the locations of all structures 
(CBMH 1, CB 2) and locations of fire reservoirs and hydrant.  

 
This site inspection letter does not address landscaping or fire protection which will be reviewed separately by 
Township consultants and the Township’s Fire Department.  
 
The owner’s forces are to complete this work as soon as possible and provide the required documentation. 



  Page 3 of 8 
 

GUELPH | OWEN SOUND | LISTOWEL | KITCHENER | EXETER | HAMILTON | GTA 

www.GMBluePlan.ca 

 
The owner is to advise the Township of Puslinch when the above mentioned items have been addressed to 
arrange for a follow up inspection. 
 
Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
GAMSBY AND MANNEROW LIMITED 
Per: 
 

 
 
Steve Conway, CET, rcsi 
 
cc. Karen Landry, Township of Puslinch 
 2120826 Ontario Inc.  
 
Enclosed: Site Inspection Photo’s 
 Marked up Site Servicing and Grading Plan  
 
Z:\108-2008\108006\108006-2\Documents\Correspondence\108-006-2  Letter_Deficiencies_2014-05-05.doc 



  Page 4 of 8 
 

GUELPH | OWEN SOUND | LISTOWEL | KITCHENER | EXETER | HAMILTON | GTA 

www.GMBluePlan.ca 

 
CBMH 1  

 
Control Headwall 



  Page 5 of 8 
 

GUELPH | OWEN SOUND | LISTOWEL | KITCHENER | EXETER | HAMILTON | GTA 

www.GMBluePlan.ca 

 
Control Headwall 

 
DICB 5 



  Page 6 of 8 
 

GUELPH | OWEN SOUND | LISTOWEL | KITCHENER | EXETER | HAMILTON | GTA 

www.GMBluePlan.ca 

 
DICB 5 

 
CB 4 



  Page 7 of 8 
 

GUELPH | OWEN SOUND | LISTOWEL | KITCHENER | EXETER | HAMILTON | GTA 

www.GMBluePlan.ca 

 
CB 6 

 
General Grading  - 3a  



  Page 8 of 8 
 

GUELPH | OWEN SOUND | LISTOWEL | KITCHENER | EXETER | HAMILTON | GTA 

www.GMBluePlan.ca 

 
General Grading  - 3b 

 
General Grading  - 3b 

 





SITE PLAN AGREEMENT  Page 16 
 

 
SCHEDULE “G” 

 
OTHER AGREEMENTS  

 









REPORT PW-2015-006 

TO:  Mayor and Members of Council 

FROM: Don Creed, Director of Public Works and Parks 

DATE:  December 2, 2015 

SUBJECT: Request for Speed Limit Reduction – Concession 4 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Report PW-2015-006 regarding a Request for Speed Limit Reduction be received; 
and that the request of residents on Concession 4 for a speed limit reduction be denied. 

DISCUSSION 

Purpose 

The purpose of this Report is to provide Council with the information from the 
Transportation of Canada Speed Limit Guidelines, the 2015 traffic count study and the 
2015 Ontario Provincial Police Speed Spy results.   

Concession 4- Sideroad 20 to County Road # 35 

Concession 4 currently has a 80 km/hr speed, residents in the area have expressed 
concerns regarding safety and have formally requested a speed limit reduction to 60 
km/hr. The Transportation of Canada Guidelines for Speed Limits does not recommend 
the reduction to 60 km/hr. The Ontario Provincial Police deployed their Speed Spy on 
Concession 4 from May 10, 2015 to May 12, 2015; average speed for this timeframe 
was 77 km/hr. Township staff also completed a traffic count study for this area. The 
results of this traffic count are; average speed was 74 km/hr for a daily traffic count of 
518 vehicles. Staff do not recommend granting the request made by the residents in the 
area to reduce the speed limit to 60 km/hr speed from the current 80 km/hr.  

Financial Implications 

N/A 



Applicable Legislation and Requirements 

Section 128 of the Highway Traffic Act authorizes the council of a municipality to pass a 
by-law to prescribe a rate of speed different from the rate set out in the legislation that is 
not greater than 100 km/hr and may prescribe different rates of speed for different times 
of day. 

The Highway Traffic Act prescribes that the rate of speed is: 

• 50 km/hr on a highway within a local municipality or within a built-up area
• 80 km/hr on a highway not within a built-up area that is within a local municipality

that had the status of a Township on December 31, 2002 and, but for the
enactment of the Municipal Act, 2001,  would have had the status of a Township
on January 1, 2003, if the municipality is prescribed by regulation.

Attachments 

1. TAC Automated Speed Limit Guidelines Form
2. Email from Inspector Lawson regarding OPP Speed Spy
3. 2015 Traffic Count
4. Letter of request from the residents of the area on Concession 4



ATTACHMENT "1"



ATTACHMENT "2 











Attachment "3" 







  
 

1 

 

 

 

REPORT REC-2015-011 

 

TO:   Mayor and Members of Council 

FROM: Marissa Herner, Communications Associate/C.S.R 
Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk 

MEETING DATE: December 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: Agreement with Calvary Baptist Church and the Puslinch Minor 
Soccer Club 

 File No. L04-CAL 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
That Report REC-2015-011 regarding the Agreement with Calvary Baptist Church and 
Puslinch Minor Soccer Club be received; 

That Council enact a by-law to authorize the Mayor and Clerk to execute the Agreement 
with Calvary Baptist Church and Puslinch Minor Soccer Club; and 

That Council enact a by-law to amend the User Fee By-Law in accordance with Report 
REC-2015-011. 

PURPOSE 

 
The purpose of this report is to obtain authorization from Council to enter in to an 
Agreement with the Calvary Baptist Church and Puslinch Minor Soccer Club for the 
provisions of soccer and the maintenance of soccer fields at the Calvary Baptist Church. 
 

SUMMARY 

 
In 2009, the Township of Puslinch (Township) recognized the need for additional soccer 
pitches in the Township, in response to a request from the Puslinch Minor Soccer Club 
(PMSC). The PMSC approached the Calvary Baptist Church (CBC) in Arkell to utilize 
their vacant land (to the west of the Church and Church’s parking lot) as a soccer field. 
 



 
 

2 
 

By making use of the CBC’s lands, the PMSC was able to utilize an additional location 
for soccer and the CBC was able to attain their goal of providing services to the overall 
community. 
 
On an annual basis, beginning in 2009, the Township, PMSC, and CBC have had an 
unwritten agreement for the use of the CBC’s land by the PMSC and maintenance of 
the soccer fields by the Township. 
 
The PMSC has expressed an interest to the Township that they wish to continue to use 
the CBC’s lands for the 2016 season. 
 
Township staff has drafted a written agreement to reflect current practices and 
standards as recommended in the Recreation and Parks Master Plan and the 
Township’s Insurance Provider. 
 
Staff recommend that the 2016 user fees for PMSC be increased to $12.00 per resident 
and $30.00 per non-resident player to assist with the recovery of the full costs of the 
maintenance of the CBC fields. The PMSC does not object to the increase the 
respective user fees for the 2016 season. Please refer to Schedule “C” for a copy of 
correspondence, dated December 10, 2015. 
 
The proposed Agreement has been discussed, reviewed, and approved by all parties.  
 
Below is a summary of the terms of the Agreement as follows: 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 The CBC agrees to allow the PMSC to use the Soccer Facility and Parking 
Facility on the Lands for the Playing Season as outlined in the Use Schedule. 

 The Township agrees to undertake the Soccer Facility Maintenance Program as 
set out in Schedule “A” to this agreement. 

 The PMSC shall at all times comply with all applicable laws pertaining to its use 
of the Lands pursuant to this agreement. 

 The term of this Agreement shall be for two (2) years. This Agreement may be 
renewed for an additional (1) year on the same terms or amended terms upon 
being agreed to by all Parties. 

 The PMSC shall be responsible for all equipment 
 

SCOPE 

 

 A Use Schedule is to be established annually in May by mutual consent of all 
Parties. 

 The PMSC will notify the CBC and the Township of any changes to the Use 
Schedule one (1) week in advance of such change. 



 
 

3 
 

 The Township will notify the PMSC and CBC of any changes to the Soccer 
Facility Maintenance Program in advance. 

 The CBC will notify the Township and the PMSC of any major maintenance work 
it plans to undertake to the Soccer Facility or Parking Facility. 

 

TERMINATION 

 
Notwithstanding, anything else in this Agreement, any Party may terminate this 
Agreement, and the licence hereby granted, effective immediately on written notice to 
all Parties if: 
 

a) A Party is in default of any of its covenants, obligations or agreements contained 
in this Agreement.  

 
The PMSC, CBC, or the Township may, at any time and for any reason, terminate this 
Agreement by giving ninety (90) days written notice to that effect. 

INSURANCE 

 
The PMSC shall, at its expense, obtain and keep in force during the term of this 
agreement, General Liability Insurance satisfactory to the Township and CBC, be 
written by an insurer licensed to conduct business in Ontario and include but not be 
limited to the following:  
 

a) A limit of liability not less than $5,000,000/occurrence; 
b) The Township and CBC shall be named as the additional insured;  
c) The policy shall contain a provision for cross liability in respect of the named 

insured; and a severability of interest clause; 
d) That 30 days prior notice of cancellation in the policy be given in writing to the 

Township and CBC. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

In 2015, the User Fees for the PMSC was $10.00 per resident and $25.00 per non-
resident. The Township collected $1,890.00 (189 residents) and $8,575.00 (343 non-
residents) for a total of $10,465.00 collected for User Fees in 2015. 
 
The Township’s maintenance costs to maintain the lands utilized by the PMSC for the 

provisions of soccer at the Puslinch Community Centre, Badenoch Community Centre, 
and Arkell are as follows: 
 



 
 

4 
 

Puslinch Community Centre: $3,346.92 
Badenoch Community Centre: $6,385.84 
Arkell: $12,230.68 
 
In total, the Township’s maintenance cost for the Puslinch Community Centre, 
Badenoch Community Centre, and Arkell is $21,963.44. 
 

For further details on the maintenance cost of the lands at the Puslinch Community 
Centre, Badenoch Community Centre, and Arkell for the provisions of soccer, see 
Schedule “A” 
 
For Council’s information, details on user fees and maintenance costs pertaining to 
other Township sport clubs are outlined in Schedule “B”. 
 
Staff recommends an increase in the user fees to $12.00 per resident and $30.00 per 
non-resident player to assist with recovery of the full costs of the maintenance of the 
Calvary Baptist Church fields.  
 
It is recognized that further financial analysis will be required once decisions are made 
regarding recommendations outlined in the Recreation and Parks Master Plan and 
Puslinch Community Centre Parks Concept. This will assist the Township in developing 
associated fees and standardized recovery rates for all clubs, such as tennis, baseball, 
and soccer. 
 

APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND REQUIREMENTS 

 

Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, C.25 
 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

Schedule “A” – Agreement 
 
Schedule “B” – User Fees and Facility Maintenance Program 
 
Schedule “C” – Correspondence from Mr. Bruce Joy, President of the Puslinch Minor 
Soccer Club 
 



 
 

5 
 

SCHEDULE “A” 

Agreement 

 

AGREEMENT made this xx day of December, 2015. 

B E T W E E N: 

CALVARY BAPTIST CHURCH 
 (Hereinafter referred to as “CBC”) 

 PARTY OF THE FIRST PART 

-and- 

PUSLINCH MINOR SOCCER CLUB 
(hereinafter referred to as the “PMSC”) 

 PARTY OF THE SECOND PART 

-and- 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Township”) 

 PARTY OF THE THIRD PART 

WHEREAS the CBC is the owner of the Lands described as Lots 9 to 12, 16, 17 Plan 131 more 
particularly described as Part Lots 13 to 15, 18 to 21, common road allowance RP 61R5087; 

AND WHEREAS the CBC has developed a soccer field on its Lands for which it is willing to 
provide limited scheduled access to soccer and parking facilities at the CBC to the PMSC;  

AND WHEREAS the Township provides maintenance of the Soccer Facility on behalf of the 
PMSC; 

AND WHEREAS the purpose of this Agreement is to outline the roles and responsibilities of 
each Party. 
 

DEFINITIONS 

 

1. In this Agreement: 
 

a) “Lands” mean the property owned by the CBC described as Lots 9 to 12, 16, 
17 Plan 131 more particularly described as Part Lots 13 to 15, 18 to 21, 
common road allowance RP 61R5087 and as shown in Schedule “B” but 
does not include the Church. 
 

b) “Soccer Facility” shall consist of the soccer field and grass area around the 
field, situated on the Lands as outlined on Schedule “B”. 

 



 
 

6 
 

c) “Parking Facility” shall be defined as the parking area as outlined on 
Schedule “B”. 

 
d) “Use Schedule” means the seasonal schedule to be established annually to 

allocate use of the soccer facility and parking facility in accordance with the 
terms of this agreement. 

 
e) “Playing Season” shall be defined as a period from May 1 through to 

November 1 with daily hours of operation 9:00 a.m. to dusk, excluding 
Sundays. 

 

f) “Soccer Facility Maintenance Program” means the maintenance works to 
be provided by the Township to the Soccer Facility. 

 

SCHEDULES 

 

2. The following Schedules are attached to and form part of this Agreement: 
 

Schedule “A” sets out the Soccer Facility Maintenance Program which is to be 
provided by the Township to the Soccer Facility. 

Schedule “B” consists of the subject Lands showing the location and extent of the 
Soccer Facility and Parking Facility. 

 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

4.1 The CBC agrees to allow the PMSC to use the Soccer Facility and Parking Facility 
on the Lands for the Playing Season as outlined in the Use Schedule. 

4.2 The Township agrees to undertake the Soccer Facility Maintenance Program as set 
out in Schedule “A” to this agreement. 

4.3 The PMSC shall at all times comply with all applicable laws pertaining to its use of 
the Lands pursuant to this agreement. 

 

4.4 The term of this Agreement shall be for two (2) years. This Agreement may be 
reviewed for an additional one (1) year on the same terms or amended terms upon 
being agreed to by all Parties. 

4.5 The PMSC shall be responsible for all soccer equipment. 

 

 



 
 

7 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES 

 

5.1 A Use Schedule is to be established annually in May by mutual consent of all 
Parties. 

5.2 The PMSC will notify the CBC and the Township of any changes to the Use 
Schedule one (1) week in advance of such change. 

5.3 The Township will notify the PMSC and CBC of any changes to the Soccer Facility 
Maintenance Program in advance. 

5.4 The CBC will notify the Township and the PMSC of any major maintenance work it 
plans to undertake to the Soccer Facility or Parking Facility.  

 

USER MAINTENANCE FEES 

 

6.1 The PMSC shall pay to the Township an annual fee of $12.00 for every Resident 
player of the Township and $30.00 for every Non-Resident player of the Township. 

 

LIABILITY INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY 

 

7.1  The PMSC and CBC agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Township, its elected 
officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents, from and against any and all 
liabilities, claims, expenses, demands, losses, costs, damages, bodily injury, 
sickness, disease or death or to damage to or destruction of tangible property 
caused by any acts or omissions or negligence of the PMSC or CBC, its officers, 
agents employees, participants, players, invitees, including parents, fans, or others 
occurring in or on the Lands or any part thereof and, as a result of the activities 
under this agreement.  

 
7.2 The Township assumes no liability or responsibility in any way for any personal injury 

or death that might be suffered or sustained by the PMSC, CBC, or an employee of 
the PMSC, CBC, or any other person who may be on the Lands, or any loss or 
damage or injury to any property caused by water, fire, theft or otherwise 
whatsoever, to the goods and chattels of the PMSC and CBC, an employee of the 
PMSC, CBC, or any other person who may be on the Lands except to the extent 
caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the Township or any person for 
whom the Township is responsible. 
 

7.3 The PMSC shall, at its expense, obtain and keep in force during the term of this 
agreement, General Liability Insurance satisfactory to the Township and CBC, be 
written by an insurer licensed to conduct business in Ontario and include but not be 
limited to the following:  



 
 

8 
 

 

(a) A limit of liability not less than $5,000,000/occurrence; 
(b) The Township and CBC shall be named as the additional insured;  
(c) The policy shall contain a provision for cross liability in respect of the 

named insured; and a severability of interest clause; 
(d) That 30 days prior notice of cancellation in the policy be given in writing to 

the Township and CBC. 
 

TERMINATION 

 

8.1  Notwithstanding, anything else in this Agreement, any Party may terminate this 
Agreement, and the licence hereby granted, effective immediately on written notice 
to all Parties if: 
 

(a) A Party is in default of any of its covenants, obligations or agreements 
contained in this Agreement.  

 

8.2 The PMSC, CBC, or the Township may, at any time and for any reason, terminate this 
Agreement by giving ninety (90) days written notice to that effect. 

8.3 Termination of this Agreement shall not affect the Parties’ rights, responsibilities, 
obligations or liabilities arising during the term of the Agreement with respect to matters 
arising prior to the date of termination and shall not affect any right or remedy to which a 
Party would otherwise be entitled. 

 

SERVICE OF NOTICE 

  

9.1 Any notice required or given pursuant to this Agreement shall be sufficiently given if: 
personally delivered, postage prepaid at any time other than during a general 
discontinuance of postal services due to a strike, lockout or otherwise; or sent by email, 
as follows: 

  



 
 

9 
 

In the case of the Township: 
 

Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk  
Township of Puslinch 
7404 Wellington Road 34 
Puslinch, ON N1H 6H9 
 

Tel: 519-763-1226 x 214 
Email: admin@puslinch.ca 

 
In the case of the PMSC:  

 
Bruce Joy, President 
The Puslinch Minor Soccer Club 
7 Clair Road West 
PO Box 27002 
Guelph, ON  N1H 6H9 

 
Tel: 519-823-3172 
Email: president@puslinchsoccer.ca 
 
 

In the case of the CBC:  

 

Brenda Jones, Administrative Assistant 
The Calvary Baptist Church 
454 Arkell Road 
Guelph, ON N11L 0J4 
 
Tel: 519-824-1161 
Email: brenda@calvaryguelph.com 

9.2 Any notice shall be deemed to have been given and received by the party to whom it is 
addressed if: 

 

(a) Delivered, on the date of delivery; 
(b) Mailed, on the fifth day after the mailing thereof; 
(c) Email transmission before 4:30 p.m., on the date of the email 

transmission; 
(d) Email transmission after 4:30 p.m., on the next business day following 

email transmission. 
 

 



 
 

10 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

 

 ________________________________________ 
  Dennis Lever, Mayor 
 
 

________________________________________ 
Karen Landry, CAO 

 

PUSLINCH MINOR SOCCER CLUB 

 

_________________________________________ 

 Bruce Joy, President 

 

_________________________________________ 

 Alison McCrindle, Secretary 

 

 

CALVARY BAPTIST CHURCH 

 

_________________________________________ 

 Name and Title 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

  Name and Title 



 
 

11 
 

SCHEDULE “A” 

Soccer Facility Maintenance Program 

Grass Cutting 

Once per seven days during the period of May 1 through to October 1 for sports fields. 

Weed Control 

No pesticides will be used on-site per the ban on cosmetic pesticides as enacted by the Province 
through amendments to the Pesticide Act. The elimination of pesticide use will be offset by an 
increase in fertilizing, top-dressing, and aeration. 

Portable Washrooms 

Contracted supply and maintenance of 1 portable toilet (Arkell) for the season (end of April to 
end of September). 

2015 Soccer Field Maintenance Costs 

 

Type Fee 

Equipment – Truck, Trailer, Mower $50.00/hr 
Labour Benefits $31.72/hr 
Total $81.72/hr 
 

 

Facility Hours x Weeks Hours x Weeks 
Total 

Rolling Fertilize 

Arkell 6 hrs x 24 wks x 
$81.72 

$11,727.68 $503.00 $0 

Total  $11,727.68 $503.00 $0 

 

For Information Purposes Only: 

 

Facility Hours x Weeks Hours x Weeks 
Total 

Rolling Fertilize 

Puslinch Community 
Centre 

1.5 hrs x 24 wks x 
$81.72 

 
$2,971.92 

 
$125.00 

 
$250.00 

Badenoch 3 hrs x 24 wks x 
$81.72 

$5,883.84 $252.00 $250.00 

Total  $8,855.76 $377.00 $500.00 

 

 

 



 
 

12 
 

Portable Washrooms 

Contracted supply and maintenance of 1 portable toilet (Badenoch) for the season (end of April 
to end of September). 



 
 

13 
 

SCHEDULE “B” 
User Fee and Maintenance Program 

 

Type Fee 

Equipment – Truck, Trailer, Mower $50.00/hr 
Labour Benefits $31.72/hr 
Total $81.72/hr 

 

2015 Baseball Diamond Maintenance Cost: 

Facility Hours x 
Weeks 

Hours x 
Weeks 
Total 

Rolling Fertilize Total 

Puslinch 
Community 

Centre, Badenoch 
Community 

Centre, and Arkell  

 
6 hrs x 24 

wks x 
$81.72 

 
 

$11,767.68 

 
 

$375.00 

 
 

$750.00 

 
 

$12,892.68 

Hydro     $1,983.01 
TOTAL     $14,875.69 

 

2015 Tennis Maintenance Costs: 

Facility Hydro Fees Total 

Puslinch Community Centre 
Tennis Courts 

$503.64 $503.64 

 

2015 User Fees: 

 Resident Non-Resident Total 

Baseball $680.00 (68 
residents) 

$1,225.00 (49 non-
residents) 

$1,905.00 

Tennis $550.00 (55 
residents) 

$275.00 (11 non-
residents) 

$825.00 

 

  



 
 

14 
 

 

SCHEDULE “C” 

Correspondence from Mr. Bruce Joy,  

President of the Puslinch Minor Soccer Club 

 

Hi Karen and Marissa , 

Thank you for updating me with regards to the agreement and user fees. I have 
forwarded on the agreement to the Calvary Baptist Church for their review. 

The Puslinch Minor Soccer Club does not object to the raise in User Fees for 2016. We 
would like to note that based on the maintenance cost's provided by the township the 
cost recovery for Soccer was 47.6 % which was significantly higher than Baseball 
(12.8%) in 2015. The club also pays for nets, corner posts, paint and the painting which 
are not included in these costs. 

We look forward to continuing our relationship with the township and are eagerly waiting 
for the new soccer fields to be built. 

Regards, 

  

--- 

Bruce Joy 
President 
Puslinch Minor Soccer Club 
7 Clair Road West  
PO Box 27002 Guelph, ON N1L 0A0 
president@puslinchsoccer.ca 
www.puslinchsoccer.ca 

 



COUNTY OF WELLINGTON 

 

 

 

2016-2020 Five Year Plan 

 

 
Presentation to Wellington County Council 

November 19, 2015 

 

 

517



Agenda 
 

 
 

 2016 Budget Process & Timeline 

 

 Overview  
 

 Highlights of Capital and Operating 5 Year Plans 

 

 Summary  

 
 
 

2  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 518



2016 Budget Process and Timeline: 

 

August  – October (2015) 

 5 year plan from 2015 updated by Treasury staff for 2016 - 2020 

 Includes Staff submissions for significant impacts/changes for operating & capital budgets and user fees 

 Preliminary 5 year plan reviewed by Senior Advisory Committee 

 

November – December (2015) 

 Preliminary 5 year plan and 2016 User fees presented to each Standing Committee  

 All presented to AF & HR Committee (Special Presentation Meeting – November 19th, 2015) 

 2016 User fees approved by Council/ Preliminary 5 year plan received for information by Council  

 Staff development of detailed operating budgets 

 Detailed budgets reviewed by CAO & Department Heads. 

 Treasury staff update budget and forecast for new information and conduct review for accuracy  

3  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 519



2016 Budget Process and Timeline: 

January (2016) 

 

 Special meeting of County Council to review 2016 Budget and 5 year plan (January 11th, 2016) 

 

 Standing Committees review 2016 Budget and 5 year plan and make recommendations to AF&HR 

 

 The Administration, Finance and Human Resources Committee reviews all recommendations and then 

recommends any budget amendments to County Council 

 

 Council approves 2016 Operating and Capital Budgets and approves 2017-2020 forecast in principle 

 

 

4  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 520



2016 - 2020 - 5 year plan – What it includes & What it doesn’t 

 

 Includes:  

 Information available that has been reviewed at high level by SAC 

 Includes Staff submissions for: 

1. Significant increase/decrease to operating budgets (example – new staff position,  new 

maintenance contract) 

2. 5 year capital budget forecast including changes to timing, scope, new or deleted 

projects and proposed financing 

3. 2016 Proposed User fees 

 

 

5  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 521



2016 - 2020 - 5 year plan – What it includes & What it doesn’t 

 

 Does not include: 

 Detailed line by line departmental operating budget submissions and capital budgets reviewed by CAO 

 Salary & benefit model still being updated 

 Updated information available in November and December - tax levy changes, grant funding, capital project changes   

 

 OMPF Funding announced November 17th - $150,000 lower annually than anticipated in 
previous 5 year plan 

 Notice to advance to full application for Badley Bridge in November 

 Approval of 2016 Citizen and Immigration Programme Funding (CIC) in December 

 

 

“The Preliminary Budget and Five Year Forecast shall serve as a guideline for departments in preparing 
their detailed current year operating and capital budget.” 

     - County of Wellington Budget Review,  Approval and Amendment Policy. 

 

 

6  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 522



2016 - 2020 - 5 year plan – Operating Budget 

 

 Preliminary 5 year projected tax impacts 

 

7  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 

  2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Gross Expenditure ($ millions) $190.8 $199.4 $206.1 $212.4 $218.9 

Tax Levy ($ millions) $88.1 $95.0 $99.6 $103.8 $108.0 

County tax impact  

(% year/year change) 

3.3% 6.8% 3.8 % 3.2% 3.1% 

523



2016 Preliminary Gross Expenditure by Programme 

 

 

8  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 

 

$77.0 million – Social Services 

 

$25.6 million – Roads 

 

$20.6 million – Wellington Terrace 

 

$16.7 million – Police 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Social 

Services 

40% 

Roads 

13% 
Police 

9% 

Terrace 

11% 

Solid Waste 

5% 

Admin 

7% 

Health / 

Ambulance  

3% 

Library 

4% 

Planning/Gre

en Legacy/ 

Emergency    

Mgt 

2% 

Museum 

1% 
Other 

5% 

524



2016 Preliminary Net Levy Impact by Programme   

 

 

9  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 

Social Services 

9% 

Roads 

25% 

Police 

18% 

Terrace 

9% 

Solid Waste 

6% 

Admin 

9% 

Health / 

Ambulance 

8% 

Library 

8% 

Planning 

/Green Legacy/ 

Emergency 

Mgt 

4% 

Museum 

2% 

Other 

2% 

 

$22.4 million – Roads 

 

$16.3 million – Police 

 

$7.9 million –Social Services 

 

$7.8 million – Wellington Terrace 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

525



2016 Preliminary Budget by Expenditure Type 

 

 

10  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 

 

$52.1 million – Salaries and Wages 

 

$46.9 million – Social Assistance 

 

$24.0 million – Transfer Payments 

 

$22.8 million – Purchase Services  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Salaries, Wages 

and Benefits 

27% 

Supplies, 

Materials and 

Equipment 

5% 

Purchased 

Services 

12% 

Social Assistance 

25% 

Transfer 

Payments 

13% 

Minor Capital 

Expenses 

1% 

Debt Charges 

2% 

Insurance 

and 

Financial 

1% 

Internal Charges 

3% 

Net Reserve 

Transfers 

5% 

Transfer to 

Capital 

6% 

526



2016 - 2020 - 5 Year Plan 

 

Challenges to keep in mind: 

 

1. Wellington County has a large geographic area with low population density 

 Therefore requires more infrastructure that is funded by fewer people 

 

2. Wellington County has growth in population aged 45 and older 

 An aging population increase the demand for some County services including access to hospitals, 

paramedics, public health, long-term care and affordable housing 

 

 

 

 

 

11  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 527



Sources of Financing - 5 year Plan – Capital  

The 5 Year Plan is developed using the principles outlined in the County of Wellington Capital 

Budget and Long Term Financing Policy as follows:     

 Maximize the use of grants and subsidies from senior levels of government or other sources  

 Use development charges to fund growth-related capital works 

 To the greatest extent possible, fund the County share of capital through current year tax levy  

 Use capital reserves to finance capital works and to limit large fluctuations in tax levy funding 

 Debentures are considered “financing” of last resort and only to be used for: 

 Equipment and machinery when there are insufficient funds in the equipment reserve of tax levy 

 Capital projects in excess of $1 million where insufficient reserve and current year tax levy financing exists 

 Emergency capital expenditures  

 

12  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 528



2016-2020 Capital Financing 

2016-2020 Five Year Plan 13 

 

$69.9 million – 45.7% of capital spending will 

be funded from tax levy  

 

$39.7 million – 25.9% funded through 

reserve  

 

$24.3 million -16% funded through Fed and 

Prov subsidies including Fed Gas Tax 

 

$5.2 million - 3.4% funded from 

Development Charges 

 

Only one project scheduled to be debt 

financed:   

$1.2 million for the rebuild of the 

Drayton Shop (2016) 

Recoveries, 
8.4% 

Subsidy, 5.9% 

Current 
Revenues, 

45.7% 

Reserves, 
25.9% 

Federal Gas 
Tax, 9.9% 

Development 
Charges, 3.4% 

Debentures, 
0.8% 

529



Sources of Financing - 5 year Plan - Debt 

“The overriding principle with respect to capital budget financing is to adopt a “pay-as-you-go” 

approach, and therefore to minimize or avoid altogether the issuance of debentures or other forms 

of long term financing” 

    - County of wellington Capital Budget and Long Term Financing Policy 

 

Benefits of Pay-as-you-go include: 

 The financial consequences of capital spending are faced as the spending decisions are being made 

 Paying for capital costs up front encourages a realistic level of spending 

 Provides greater operating flexibility  

 Avoid interest, fiscal agent fees and debenture issuance costs 

 

 

 

14  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 530



Sources of Financing - 5 year Plan - Debt 

“County of Wellington AA+ ratings affirmed on exceptional liquidity and very low debt burden” 

     - Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, August 2015 

 

2015 Annual Debt Repayment Limit (based on 2013 FIR) 

 Ontario Regulation 403/02 indicates that total annual debt servicing  costs cannot exceed 

25% of Own Source Revenues (excludes government grants, municipal recoveries, 

development charges etc.) 

 Debt servicing in 2013 (peak in forecasted debt outstanding  of $37.63 million) = $ 4.18 

million  

 This represents only 4.2% of own source revenues 

15  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 531



Forecast of Debt Outstanding 

16 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

County of Wellington Debt Outstanding 2011-2020  
($ Million) 

Tax Supported Debt DC Supported Debt

532



Sources of Financing - 5 year Plan – Reserves & Reserve Funds 

“Reserves and reserve funds are a key element of an effective long term financial strategy” 

     - County of Wellington, Reserve and Reserve Fund Policy 

 Meet specific liabilities (WSIB, Landfill closure) 

 Meet known needs such as replacement or acquisition of capital assets (Capital , 

Equipment) 

 Protect against known and unforeseen risks (Contingency and Stabilization)  

 

 County’s reserve and reserve fund balances totaled $65.4 million as of 

December 31, 2014 (does not include Fed Gas Tax and Development Charges) 

 
 

17  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 533



Sources of Financing - 5 year Plan – Reserves & Reserve Funds 

18  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 

  2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Capital Related Reserves  $  37,045   $ 41,043   $ 35,758   $ 37,110   $ 38,227   $ 40,473   $ 45,976  

Contingency/Stabilization/Working Reserves  $  15,509   $ 16,491   $ 12,433   $ 12,472   $ 12,518   $ 12,556   $ 12,580  

Specific Purpose Reserve Funds 
(Includes Hospital Grant) 

 $  12,807   $ 14,556   $ 15,186   $ 17,749   $ 21,190   $ 17,446   $ 18,910  

                

Total Discretionary Reserves 
 $  65,361   $ 72,089   $ 63,377   $ 67,332   $ 71,935   $ 70,476   $ 77,467  

                

534



Sources of Financing - 5 year Plan – Reserves & Reserve Funds 

 Stabilization Reserves are maintained to protect against reducing service levels 

or raising taxes because of temporary revenue shortfalls or unanticipated 

expenditures.  

 

 Best practices recommend a target balance of 10% - 15% of the County’s own 

source revenues. 

 

 Based on 2014 FIR data the County’s target would be $9.9 - $14.9 million 

 Actual balance in contingency reserves December 31, 2014 - $15.5 million 

 

19  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 535



Sources of Financing - 5 year Plan – Reserves & Reserve Funds 

 Capital Reserves are used to finance capital expenditures for equipment 

replacements and facility improvements and to fund budget adjustments at time 

of tender 

 

 Generally there is no limit place on capital reserves as their purposes is to meet 

the commitments of the capital program and reduce debt reliance 

 

  Actual balance in capital reserves December 31, 2014 - $37 million  

 

 

20  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 536



 

Asset Management Planning – Reserve Creation 

 

 In 2013 the County completed an asset management plan for Roads, 

Bridges & Culverts and Social Housing Buildings – a County annual 

funding shortfall of $2.5 million was estimated ($1.8 million roads, 

$646,000 for Social Housing buildings) 

 

 Creation of Asset Management Reserve – balance of $5 million by 2020 

(2017 - $200,000, 2018 - $400,000, 2019 - $1.2 million, 2020 - $3.0 million) 

Currently funded through transfer to reserves in Roads 

 

 

 21 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 537



2016-2020 Capital Expenditures 

2016-2020 Five Year Plan 22 

 Roadways , 62.2% 

 Solid Waste Services , 
4.3% 

 County Property , 0.5% 

 CAO & Clerks , 1.3% 

 Museum and 
Wellington Place , 0.7% 

 County Library System       
5.7% 

Social Services (Housing, 
Childcare, Ontario 

Works), 10.1% 

 Wellington Terrace , 
0.7% 

 Economic Development 
, 0.8% 

 Hospital and Other 
Capital Grants , 5.9% 

 Ambulance Service , 
1.3% 

Other (Emergency 
Management, Green 
Legacy, Police, POA), 

0.5% 

Gross Capital Expenditures 

for 2016 – 2020  

 $153 million 

 Roadways - 62.2% or 

$95 million 

 Social & Affordable 

Housing – 18.9% or 

$28.9 million 

 Hospital Grants – 

5.9% or $8.96 million 

(balance of 

$9.4million) 

538



2016-2020 Five Year Capital Plan Highlights 

Roads  

 Investment in County roads network – almost $64 Million over next five 

years 

 $26.6 million roads construction 

 $28.9 million bridge and culvert rehabilitation 

 $20.8 million in roads resurfacing 

 Rebuild Drayton Garage – $3.5 million in 2016, $500,000 approved in 

2015 

 Rebuild Erin Garage - $4.5 million in 2019-2020 

 

 

 
23 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 539



2016-2020 Five Year Capital Plan Highlights 

Roads  

 Growth related projects are partially funded through the DC reserve and 

are identified within the County’s Development Charge study scheduled 

to be updated in 2016-17.  

 

 WR 46 work - $6.4 million 2016 – 2018    ($4.5 million funded from 

current,  $0.3 million from Federal Gas Tax and $1.6 million from 

Development Charges) 

 

 $5.2 million in development charge funding utilized over the 5 year plan 

 

 

 
24 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 540



2016-2020 Five Year Capital Plan Highlights 

Roads – Badley Bridge 

 

 The tax levy funding level over the forecast period sees a significant 

increase in order to accommodate the replacement of the Badley Bridge 

without compromising the existing planned work. 

 In forecast as $4 million funded by current revenues ($1million in 2017, 

$3 million 2018) 

 An expression of interest requesting $3 million in funding has been 

submitted under Small Communities Fund.  Selected candidates will be 

invited to submit a full application in November.  

 

 

 

25 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 541



2016-2020 Five Year Capital Plan Highlights 

Roads, Facilities and Equipment 

 The 2016 tax levy requirement for road and facility work is higher than 

the amount projected in last year’s five-year plan due to increased costs 

failing infrastructure 

 

 

 

26 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 

  2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Tax Levy ($ millions) $84.52  $88.10  $95.00  $99.60  $103.80  $108.00  

Roads Capital  Tax Levy ($ millions) $8.82  $10.14  $11.62  $12.04  $11.57  $13.72  

Roads Capital tax Levy (% of total) 10% 12% 12% 12% 11% 13% 

Roads Capital year over year % change 6% 15% 15% 4% -4% 19% 

542



2016-2020 Five Year Capital Plan Highlights 

Roads  

Asset Management and the Budget: 

  

 Projects are prioritized based on safety, condition and need as determined through a 

roads needs study 

 

 Roads staff have recently purchased the WorkTech software system. Once the software 

implementation is complete (2016) the data within the roads asset management plan 

will be updated, and may result in changes to the forecast years within the capital 

budget.  

27 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 543



2016-2020 Five Year Operating Plan Highlights 

 

 

 

28 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 

Roads 

 An increase to purchased services has been added for fleet maintenance ($100,000) as 

well as in roads garages ($60,000)  

 

 Minor Capital has been increased by $150,000 based on the increasing costs associated 

with Hot Mix Patches 

 

 Additional roads safety hours in 2016  

 

 Debt servicing costs associated with Drayton Shop are expected to commence in 2016 

with the majority of the charges to begin in 2017.  

 

 

544



2016-2020 Five Year Capital Plan Highlights 

 

 

 

29 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 

Solid Waste Services 

 $4.7 million in improvements at active Landfill sites over 5 years (current funding) 

 Includes potential Leachate Collection System at Riverstown - $3.4 million in  2018/2019 

 Riverstown New cell development - $400K in 2017/2018 

 

 Waste Management Strategy project - $300K spread over 2016,17 and 18 and has the 

potential to impact future operating & capital budgets 

 

 Equipment replacements totaling $1.8 million over the five years fully funded from reserve 

 

 

545



2016-2020 Five Year Operating Plan Highlights 

 

 

 

30 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 

Solid Waste Services 

 SWS will be implementing a new HHW mobile unit in order to increase the quantity of 

and access to HHW materials diverted each year. This includes the addition of a part-time 

HHW technician in June of 2016.  

 

 The 2016 estimate of blue box recyclables and scrap metal sales revenue has been 

decreased by $200,000 based on 2015 experience.  

 

546



2016-2020 Five Year Capital Plan Highlights 

Green Legacy 

 A replacement truck for Tree Nursery manager is scheduled for 2016. 

 Facility work on the southern nursery includes waterproofing the 
foundation. This work is funded from the property reserve. 

 

Community Emergency Management 

 2016- Upgrading of the County fire paging equipment budgeted at 
$400,000, funded from the General Capital Reserve. 

 2017- Emergency Management software budgeted at $80,000.  

 2019- Emergency Management vehicle replacement budgeted at 
$50,000 
 

31 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 547



2016-2020 Five Year Capital Plan Highlights 

Museum and Archives at Wellington Place 

 The rehabilitation of Wellington Place  - budget of $264,000 including $80,000 

federal funding from the Canada 150 Community Infrastructure Programme 

with the remaining $184,000 funded from reserve in 2016. 

 Resurface Driveway and Parking Lot in 2016 & 2017 - $400,000 funded from 

reserves 

 2017 - Wellington Place signage - replace the existing electronic sign and the 

installation of directional signs within WP property. The proposed budget is 

$150,000 fully funded from reserves 

 2018/2019 - Farm House Archeological dig budgeted at $175,000. The dig site 

is located near the hospital construction zone so the timing of this project is 

dependent on the completion of the hospital. Proposed funding is the tax levy. 

 

32 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 548



2016-2020 Five Year Operating Plan Highlights 

Museum and Archives at Wellington Place 

 Annualization of part-time Archives assistant added in 2015 

 Additional hours for the Curatorial Assistant position will enable the 

WCMA to continue and expand its outreach programme of artifacts in 

public spaces; and, work with local municipalities and groups on their 

heritage projects. 

 

 

33 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 549



2016-2020 Five Year Capital Plan Highlights 

Libraries  

 New Hillsburgh Library scheduled for 2016-2017.  

 $4 million has been identified, funded $1.5 million from the County Property 

Reserve and $2.5 million from the tax levy.  

 Local branch improvements in 2016 include  

 Installation of self check out terminals at Palmerston and Aboyne 

 Replacement of outdoor signs at Marden and Palmerston 

 Addition of interactive programme material in the children’s department at 

various branches.  

 Upgrade to interior lights at the Rockwood branch 

 

34 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 550



2016-2020 Five Year Operating Plan Highlights 

Libraries  

 $100,000 in Provincial funding for electronic databases previously funded 

by the province are ending in 2015. $30,000 worth are being retained and 

now funded by the County. 

 Additional Assistant Branch Supervisor and Page hours at the Fergus 

location to meet the current needs of the location, additional page hours 

at the Clifford location 

 Additional Assistant Branch Supervisor and Page hours at the Palmerston 

location as it is set to re-open in 2016 

 

35 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 551



2016-2020 Five Year Capital Plan Highlights 
Hospital Grants 

 

 In 2008, Council committed $5 M for Groves Memorial Hospital 

 

 In 2014, Council committed an additional $9.4 M for Groves ($5M), 
Louise Marshall ($2.2M) and Palmerston District ($1.8M)  

 

 $440,000 being paid out to Palmerston over 2016 – 2019, with 
balance of $7.2 million paid out in 2019. 
 

 

 
 

36 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 552



2016-2020 Five Year Plan Highlights – Ontario Works 
 

 

Capital 

 

 The Capital plan includes facility improvements at 129 Wyndham St and the Fergus 
Ontario Works office. The County’s portion is $67,000 funded from reserve. The City’s 
funding contribution for capital works is $43,000 

 

 

Operating 

 

 Staffing levels for 2016 increasing by 2 temporary caseworker positions required for 
pressures from ongoing SAMS provincial software issues 
 

  

 
 

 
 

37 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 553



2016-2020 Five Year Plan Highlights - Childcare 
 

 Capital  - The capital budget for child care includes an allocation of $200,000 over 
2016-18 to complete facility improvements at the administration offices located on 
Douglas Street. The County’s portion of $46,000 is funded from reserve and the 
City requirement is $154,000 

 

 A new management position has been created to realign oversight of prescribed 
services, increasing staffing levels by 1 FTE 

 

 Palmerston Child Care may move to an Upper Grand District School Board site 
with increased capacity in 2017. Budgetary implications are unknown. 

 
 
 
 
 

38 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 554



2016-2020 Five Year Plan Highlights - Housing 
 
 

 Capital spending in 2016 includes building condition audits for Non-Profits and 
Affordable Housing units 
 

 The final phase of the Speedvale elevator project is planned for 2016 and is 
currently expected to be completed at a lower cost than originally forecast (savings 
of approximately $200,000).  
 

 Included in the capital budget for IT is the acquisition of the Integrated Housing 
System (IHS), a database being developed to streamline non-profit administration at 
$57,000. 

  

 
 

39 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 555



2016-2020 Five Year Operating Plan Highlights 

Social Services  
Housing 
 The Special Projects Manager position approved in the 2015 budget remains vacant as 

there is currently a staffing review being performed by an external consultant 

 

 The Integrated Housing System (IHS), a database being developed to streamline non-
profit administration, is included in the operating budget at $30,000 for maintenance 

 

 Increases in the budget to allow for higher move out repair demands, hydro costs, and 
grounds maintenance 

 

 Budgetary implications for End of Operating Agreements beginning in 2016 not clear. 

40 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 556



2016-2020 Five Year Capital Plan Highlights – Affordable Housing 

Affordable Housing  

 The capital plan includes $13.7 million for the construction of Fergusson Place 

Phase II. The County has secured $8 million in funding from senior levels of 

government with the remaining $5.8 million funded from reserves. 

 

  Additionally $203,000 over the five years has been allocated for facility 

improvements at 165 Gordon Street (Fergusson Place Phase I) in Fergus and 

182 George St in Arthur.  These projects will be funded through the Housing 

Development Reserve Fund. 

 

 

 

41 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 557



2016-2020 Five Year Capital Plan Highlights 

Wellington Terrace 

 Various furniture and equipment replacements over the five 

year plan $895,000 

 The Domestic Hot Water Boiler Replacement is budgeted in 

2016 for $120,000 

 Resident Van replacement in 2020 for $40,000 

 

 The preliminary forecast has all projects funded from the levy.  

 

 

42 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 558



2016-2020 Five Year Operating Plan Highlights 
Wellington Terrace 

 

 Additional funding expected for 2016 of $260,000 based on case mix 
changes – to be confirmed in December. 

 

 

 The first debt charge maturity from the Terrace building 
construction matures in 2017, resulting in a reduction in debt 
charges of $114,000. Staff propose to use the savings to increase the 
transfer to the Terrace building reserve to continue to set aside 
funds for the future repairs and replacement of the facility. 

 
 

43 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 559



2016-2020 Five Year Capital Plan Highlights 

Economic Development 

 

 SWIFT - The preliminary plan increases the annual payment by 

$30,000 spread over the first three years with a remaining to be 

paid out in 2019 ($1.14 million) 

 

 The Wellington signage implementation has a preliminary budget of 

$100,000 funded from the tax levy and is scheduled for 2016.  

44 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 560



2016-2020 Five Year Operating Plan Highlights 

Economic Development 
 The addition of a part-time Talent Attraction Position (1 year contract) 

is budgeted for in 2016,this is partially offset by grant funding 

 International Plowing Match in 2016. $150,000 is budgeted in 2016 to 
cover County related costs to host the event. In addition, a transfer of 
$100,000 to the town of Minto is budgeted in 2016 for the event. 

 County-Wide Business Retention and Expansion Implementation 
($50,000) Business Retention and Expansion Local Implementation 
Fund ($175,000) continue throughout the 2016-2020 period 

 Future budget impacts related to CIP programmes? 

 

45 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 561



2016-2020 Five Year Plan Highlights – Provincial  Offences Act (POA) 

Capital  

 A provision of $108,000 is included over the forecast as the 

County’s portion of POA capital replacements 

 

Operating 

 Revenue has been reduced throughout the five year plan to better 

reflect actual results in 2015 due to low charge volumes ($250,000 

in 2016) 

 

46 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 562



2016-2020 Five Year Operating Plan Highlights 

Police Services Board 
 

 The 2016 contract estimate is $15,664,428 and represents a savings of $769,000 over the 2015 

contract  

 

 As part of the Strategy for a Safer Ontario the Ministry is developing a new funding model to 

support local initiatives and is not able to confirm any funding beyond the 1st quarter of 2016 – 

this represents a reduction of $157,500.  

 

 The Safe Communities transfer payment ($25,000) has now been moved from Economic 

Development into Police to align with this strategy. 

 

 Each year from 2017 – 2020 the 5 year plan allows for the addition of one new officer 

 

 

 

47 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 563



2016-2020 Five Year Operating Plan Highlights 

Treasury  

 A new Asset Management Co-ordinator to meet financial reporting 

requirements according to PSAB as well as increasing Asset management 

reporting requirements for FIR and Federal Gas Tax. This position will allow the 

County to make better use of the asset management plans to be useful and 

updated regularly with ongoing departmental collaboration.  

 

Human Resources 

 The addition of a HR clerk to aid in payroll, pension and benefits, and corporate 

training, this additional position is partially offset by the elimination of the HR 

student position. 

  

 

 

 

 

48 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 564



2016-2020 Five Year Operating Plan Highlights 

 Property  

 Additional hours for existing cleaner positions from part-time to full-time to 

allow for additional cleaning coverage at various County building locations 

including the Willowdale Child Care Centre which will be offset by the end of 

the existing cleaning contract costs at that location. 

 

CAO & Clerks  

 The addition of a Graphic Designer position in 2016 in order to allow shifting of 

current duties and the expansion of the County’s Social Media presence 

 The addition of an Information Management assistant position in September of 

2016 

 

 

 

49 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 565



2016-2020 Five Year Operating Plan Highlights 

 

Public Health 

 The County funds 32.7% of the municipal share of Wellington-Dufferin-

Guelph Public Health expenditures – levy requirement of $2.2 M 

representing a 2 % increase. 

 Impact of Provincial funding freeze unknown on future years. 

 

Ambulance 

 The County funds roughly 40% of the municipal share of Land Ambulance 

expenditures (based on calls for service) – levy requirement of $3.7M in 

2016 

 

 
50 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 566



2016-2020 Five Year Operating Plan Highlights 

General Revenues: 

 OMPF funding further reduced – need to incorporate an additional 
$150,00 reduction annually  

 

 Assume decrease in Supplementary Taxes of $200,000 as MPAC catches 
up on outstanding permits.  

 

General Expenses: 

 Tax write-offs -  remain at $850,000 for 5 year plan 

 
 

 

51 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 567



Operating Budget: Staffing Changes  

52 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 568



2016 Operating Budget Summary 

 

 2nd year of Police Billing Model savings offset by reduced 1000 Officer Grant – 
Net savings included in 2016 approx. $610,000 

 Reserve funding set aside for hospital grants (approx.  $1.5 million annually until 
2019) 

 Reserve funding for SWIFT rural broadband ($1.14 million by 2019) 

 OMPF funding reductions (additional .3% impact to be updated) 

 SWS sales revenue reduction ($200,000 in 2016 for recyclables) 

 POA revenue reduction forecast ($250,000) 

 Roads asset management reserve transfers $200,000 in 2017, increasing to $3 
million yearly by 2020 

 

     

53 2016-2020 Five Year Plan 569



2016 - 2020 - 5 year plan – Operating Budget 

 

 Preliminary 5 year projected tax impacts 

 

54  2016-2020 Five Year Plan 

  2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Gross Expenditure ($ millions) $190.8 $199.4 $206.1 $212.4 $218.9 

Tax Levy ($ millions) $88.1 $95.0 $99.6 $103.8 $108.0 

County tax impact  

(% year/year change) 

3.3% 6.8% 3.8 % 3.2% 3.1% 

570



 

 

        COMMITTEE REPORT  
  
  

To:  Chair and Members of the Solid Waste Services Committee 

From:  Gordon J. Ough, P. Eng., County Engineer 
Date:            Tuesday, September 08, 2015 

Subject:  Mobile Household Hazardous Waste Service 

 

Background: 
 

Proper management of household hazardous wastes (HHW) is critical for the health of people, animals 
and the environment. HHW materials that end up in landfill or are poured down drains can cause long-
term environmental and health impacts.  In the County of Wellington, there are two key programmes 
the Solid Waste Services (SWS) Division currently offers to collect HHW materials from residents – 
depots and event days. 
 
Depots 
The Solid Waste Services (SWS) Division operates five permanent HHW depots. These depots are 
located at all County-owned waste facilities except the Rothsay site.  There is not enough room on the 
Rothsay site to accommodate the HHW depot.  The depots are licensed to accept the following HHW 
materials: used motor oil and filters, antifreeze, household batteries, aerosol containers, propane 
cylinders, and vehicle batteries.   
 
Event Days 
To offer residents disposal options for hazardous materials not accepted at the HHW depots, SWS also 
provides seven HHW Event Days, one per year in each of the County’s member municipalities from 
May to October.  While County residents can attend any one of these event days and they are well 
utilized, staff have received feedback that they are inconvenient, primarily due to their infrequency. 
The HHW depots have limited space and there is no storage available to accept all types of HHW 
materials.   
 
Other Options  
For some individual HHW materials, there are several additional options for residents within the 
County of Wellington. For instance, SWS manages a household battery collection programme in 
partnership with the 14 County libraries.  There are a few retailers that accept paint and/or fluorescent 
bulbs; however these are very limited within the County.  Some local auto recyclers also accept 
automotive HHW materials from residents. 
 

Proposed Mobile HHW Service: 

 
SWS staff have been investigating opportunities to improve the HHW disposal options for County 
residents.  They found that a number of Ontario municipalities offer some variation of a mobile HHW 
service.  Through visits and research of various mobile services, staff determined that this option could 

90



 

provide the additional level of service requested by County residents.  An application was made to the 
Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change (MOECC) in June 2012 to operate a licensed mobile 
HHW service. This application was approved in 2014. 
 

Materials to be Accepted 
Under the Environmental Certificate of Approval (ECA) issued for the mobile HHW unit, the following 
waste types are approved for collection: 

 Aerosols 

 Antifreeze 

 Batteries – Household (single-use and rechargeable) 

 Batteries – Industrial Stationary and Non-Lead Acid Motive 

 Corrosives (e.g. cleaners, acids, bleach) 

 Fertilizers 

 Fire Extinguishers (portable) 

 Flammables (e.g. fuels, driveway sealers, paint thinners, adhesives) 

 Fluorescent bulbs and tubes 

 Mercury Devices 

 Oil Containers 

 Oil Filters 

 Paint and Coatings 

 Pesticides, Fungicides and/or Herbicides 

 Pharmaceuticals 

 Pressurized Containers (e.g. propane, oxygen, helium) 

 Reactives (e.g. cream hardeners used in auto body repair 

 Sharps and Syringes 

 Toxics (e.g. nail polish removers, paint strippers, some adhesives) 
 

Service 
The mobile unit would be a custom-made enclosed 40 yard bin with appropriate drums and storage 
containers to safely receive and store HHW materials. The bin would be located at a waste facility for a 
month before being moved to another County waste facility.  All collected materials would be removed 
from the bin prior to moving it to the next waste facility location.   
 
Each waste facility would have this mobile unit available for two months per year. This would increase 
the opportunities for residents to divert the full complement of HHW materials from the current seven 
days per year to 150 days per year.  With the added convenience, staff expect there to be an increase 
in the quantity of HHW materials diverted each year. 
 

Staffing and Costs  
This service requires a staff member that has been trained to safely receive, separate and bulk the 
incoming materials. They also need to ensure manifests and paperwork are in compliance with the 
Environmental Certificate of Approval.  SWS proposes a part time HHW Technician position be created.  
This position would staff the mobile unit during each waste facility’s regular operating hours, to a 
maximum of three days per week.   
 

91



 

SWS would contract the removal, transport, processing, recycling and disposal of collected materials to 
an approved contractor.  The empty bin would be moved by the County’s Roll Off operation.   
 
Offering the Event Days in conjunction with the mobile unit could be considered a duplication of 
service.  As the Town of Erin and the Township of Guelph/Eramosa do not have waste facilities within 
their boundaries, SWS could continue to provide an event day in each of those two municipalities.   
 
After factoring in increased staffing and processing costs against increases in available funding, SWS 
staff estimate implementing the mobile HHW service will result in annual net savings of $8,000.    
 
Staff anticipate the proposed change in service would be received positively by the public.  The 
programme would be periodically evaluated in order to determine whether there is merit to expanding 
the mobile HHW service in the future. 
 

Recommendation:  
 

That a mobile HHW service be implemented as soon as practical in 2016.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
Gordon J. Ough, P. Eng. 
County Engineer 

92



 

 

        COMMITTEE REPORT  
  
  

To:  Chair and Members of the Solid Waste Services Committee 

From:  Gordon J. Ough, P. Eng., County Engineer 
Date:            Tuesday, November 10, 2015 

Subject:  SWS Strategy - Discussion Paper 

 

 

Background: 

Throughout 2015, the Solid Waste Services (SWS) Committee has been discussing the need to develop 
a short and long-term Strategy for provision of waste and diversion services in the County of 
Wellington.  SWS staff have been directed to develop timelines and a plan to produce a Strategy 
Report under the guidance of the SWS Committee.  

Strategy Report Structure 

There are many steps in developing a strategy for the future of solid waste services in the County.   

 Identify current practices, operations, services, and goals to establish a baseline.   

 Identify the priorities, goals, guiding principles, parameters and evaluation criteria. 

 Review all areas of service to meet those goals and priorities. 

 Establish a timeline to achieve those goals and priorities. 
 
As goals and priorities are evaluated, decisions will need to balance: 

 Customer service 

 Economic considerations 

 Environmental stewardship 

 Waste management hierarchy (reduce, reuse, recycle, recover, avoid, disposal) 

Strategy Report Topics 

The following list of topics was presented at the September Committee meeting for consideration for 
inclusion in the SWS Strategy Report.  The list was accepted and has been sorted into three groupings.   

Grouping A Provision of Waste Management Services in the County 
Grouping B Future of Waste Disposal in the County 
Grouping C Independent Topics 

 
Within the first two groupings, the topics cannot be investigated independently. A decision on one will 
affect one or more of the other topics within the grouping.  The final grouping consists of topics that 
can be analyzed in isolation, as the relationships with other topics is relatively minimal.  
  

55



 

A. Provision of Waste Management Services in the County 

 Review of waste and recycling programmes 

 Rural curbside collection 

 Single stream vs two stream recycling 

 Cart Collection – household, multi-residential and Industrial, Commercial and Institutional 
(ICI) 

 Bulky item collection 

 Organics collection 

 Leaf and yard waste collection 

 Special event recycling 

 Collections and processing contracts – timing, length, best practices 

 Additional recyclable materials added to the programme 

 Waste facility optimization 

 Optimal location and number of waste facilities 

 Vision of how best to utilize waste facilities (i.e. diversion centres etc.) 

 Hours and days of operation 

 User fees 

 Optimum price at curb 

 Optimum price at sites 

 Minimum fees 

 Surcharges for unsorted loads 

 Additional site diversion materials 

 Explore shingle, drywall, carpet, mattress, Styrofoam, film plastic recycling 

 ICI diversion programmes 
 
B. Future of Waste Disposal in the County 

 Disposal considerations 

 Riverstown expansion (i.e. Phase III) 

 Other landfill siting 

 Landfill mining 

 Buffer land acquisition 

 Use of closed landfill properties 

 Alternative technologies 

 Explore technologies for managing waste (i.e. Energy from Waste (EFW), gasification, “Dirty 
Materials Recycling Facilities (MRF)” etc.) 

 Landfill bans 

 Mandatory recycling 
 
C. Independent Topics 

 Co-operative arrangements with other municipalities 

 Involvement in regional waste management systems (i.e. MRF, landfills, EFW plants etc.) 

 Co-operative contract procurement 

 Food waste management 

 Master Composter programme 

 Education on reducing food waste 

56



 

 Partnerships (i.e. composting, community gardens etc. with Green Legacy, U of G, 
horticultural societies, County Housing) 

 Endorse and or/comply with Extended Producer Responsibility and other waste minimization 
legislation 

 Outreach 

 Tours and presentations to provide education related to waste reduction 

 Working with ICI sector to reduce waste 

 Meeting outreach Green Strategy initiatives 

 Partnerships with schools, Environmental Non-Governmental Organizations (ENGOs) 

 New outreach tools (i.e. Waste App, Technology) 

 Event Days 

 Spring clean-up support 

 Earth Day or other Event Days 

 Goals 

 Diversion targets, “Zero Waste” 

Work Plan and Timelines 

There is significant value in investigating the “Grouping A - Provision of Waste Management Services” 
topic first.  This grouping contains the issues and services that residents are most familiar with and 
have formed opinions about.   It is about what services SWS provides, how they are delivered, how 
they are financed and how they impact the environment.   
 
By tackling this critical topic grouping first, it simplifies determining the direction for SWS to take with 
the other topics and issues.  There is also value in exploring this topic grouping first because the 
decisions and conclusions reached will be very useful for developing the next curbside collection 
contract which will need a tender issued by early summer in 2018. 
 
As Grouping A involves the services the public utilize, it would be prudent to seek public feedback at 
the start of the process.  By incorporating public feedback into the process early, it provides a good 
starting point for this task.  Public input should be sought throughout the project which will allow SWS 
Staff and Committee to guide and re-focus the project as required.   
 

A suggested timeline for establishing the project parameters and studying the three topic groupings is 
provided below; 
 

 
 

Project Timelines

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Establish current baseline, set goals, guiding 

principles, parameters, evaluation criteria for project

Grouping A

Grouping B

Grouping C

2016 2017 2018

57



 

Grouping A contains the most complex topics and involves difficult decisions and potential trade-offs.  
It may take a 12-18 months to: 
- Review current systems and best practices. 
- Engage in public consultation.   
- Evaluate and analyze the results, and make draw conclusions, and incorporate public feedback into 

the development of options for achieving the optimal waste system for the County. 
- Analyze and cost the various options. 
- Make recommendations. 
 
Grouping B involves determining the future of waste disposal in the County.  It will take approximately 
6 months to: 
- Study how best to utilize existing County landfill resources.  Determine whether landfill expansion 

or siting a new landfill would be the optimal outcome.   
- Assess whether there is potential for the use of alternate technologies in the future. 
- Analyze and cost the various options. 
- Make recommendations. 
 
Grouping C includes various topics that are relatively independent of each other and of other topics in 
Grouping A and B.  It will take approximately 6 months to: 
- Assess the desirability of the different policies and programmes that are complementary to the 

delivery of solid waste services. 
- Analyze and cost the various options. 
- Make recommendations. 
  
There is time built-in throughout the life of the project to provide progress reports and receive 
direction from Committee.    

Recommendation:  
 

That the County staff, with the assistance of consultants as required, initiate the process of creating a 
report, to outline the County’s direction in Solid Waste issues in future years. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
Gordon J. Ough, P. Eng. 
County Engineer 

58



Planning & Development Advisory Committee Meeting 
November 3, 2015 

7:00 pm 
Council Chambers, Aberfoyle 

 
 

MINUTES 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: 
John Sepulis, Chair 
Councilor Ken Roth 
Dennis O’Connor 
Robin Wayne 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Dianne Paron 
 
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE:  
Kelly Patzer – Development Coordinator 
Sarah Wilhelm – County of Wellington 
Kevin Johnson 
Jeff Buisman 
Cam Koebel 
Sharon Richard 
Councilor Wayne Stokley
 
1. - 5. COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 

• See November 3, 2015 Committee of Adjustment Minutes 

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS 
 
6.  OPENING REMARKS 

• The Chair advised the gallery that the following portion of the Committee meeting will 
be reviewing and commenting on planning development applications.  

7. DISCLOSUE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST 
• None 

8. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
• Moved by Ken Roth, Seconded by Robin Wayne 
• That the minutes of the Tuesday October 13th, 2015 Planning & Development 

Advisory Committee Meeting are hereby adopted. 
CARRIED 

 
9. APPLICATIONS FOR SITE PLAN URBAN DESIGN REVIEW 
 
9(a) D11/REN – 2120826 Ontario Ltd, Ren’s Pet Depot 20 Brock Road N 
 Site Plan Review for Urban Design comments – proposed warehouse expansion. 
 

• Kelly Patzer presented the application outlinging on the aerial where the proposed 
expansion is to be located, summarized Township Staff comments received and 
noted the landscaping along the west and south of the warehouse to provide a visual 
buffer against the warehouse walls as seen from the neighbouring residential 
properties on Wellington Road 34.. 

• Robin Wayne recalled at a Public Meeting it was mentioned that there could be a 
limit on the amount of trucking bays – Kelly Patzer is to review zoning and Public 
Meeting minutes 

 
Moved by Robin Wayne, Seconded by Dennis O’Connor that the following 
comments be reviewed by staff and consultants for Site Plan file D11/REN: 

• Possible berm to plant trees on to soften the south and west walls 



 2 

• Would request some of the landscaping be relocated from the rear of the 
property to the front of the building to be in conformity with Urban Design 
Guidelines 

• Note some landscaping is off the subject property 
 
 
10. ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENTS 

• None 
   
11. LAND DIVISION  
 
11(a) 11(a) Severance Application B96/15 (D10/JEF) – Jefferson Farms Ltd. c/o Tom 

Jefferson, Part Lot 5, West of Blind Line, Plan 131 municipally known as 112 Carter 
Road. 

 
 Proposed severance is 46 m frontage x 110 m = 0.5 hectares, vacant land for 

proposed rural residential use 
  
 Retained parcel is 8 hectares with 845 m frontage, existing and proposed rural 

residential and agricultural use with existing dwelling. 
  
 Moved by Ken Roth, Seconded by robin Wayne that the following comments are 

forwarded to the County of Wellington Land Division Committee: 

• No comment 
CARRIED 

11(b) Severance Application B97/15 (D10/GRE) – Amarjit & Jasraman Grewal, 
Concession Gore, Part Lots 37 & 38, municipally known as 7470 MacPhersons 
Lane. 

 
 Proposed lot line adjustment is 0.3 hectares with no frontage, existing agricultural 

field to be added to abutting rural residential property – Gurleen Grewal & Santokh 
Rai. 

 
 Retained parcel is 0.5 hectares with 10 m frontage, existing and proposed rural 

residential use with existing dwelling. 
 

Moved by Ken Roth, Seconded by Dennis O’Connor that the following comments be 
forwarded to the County of Wellington Land Division Committee: 

• Note that the Zoning is different on the severed parcel and the parcel to be 
added to. 

• The septic is not identified on the small parcel to the south, 4027 Highway 6, 
and there is a concern that it may cross a property line on the severed portion. 

CARRIED 

11(c) Severance Application B98/15 (D10/GRE) – Amarjit & Jasraman Grewal, 
Concession Gore, Part Lots 37 & 38, municipally known as 7470 MacPhersons 
Lane. 

 
 Proposed easement is 10m frontage x 112m = 0.1 hectares, existing driveway for 

proposed access to benefit the merged parcel (B97/15) 
 

• Sarah Wilhelm noted the County does not support access by easement 
 
Moved by Dennis O’Connor, Seconded by Robin Wayne that the following 
comments be forwarded to the County of Wellington Land Division Committee: 
 

• The Committee does not support the proposed easement to provide access to 
the property when there is an existing access off of Highway 6. 

CARRIED 

 



 3 

12. OTHER MATTERS 
• None 

13. CLOSED MEETING - no matters 

14. FUTURE MEETINGS  

• Special Committee of Adjustment Tuesday November 10 @ 7:00 p.m. 

• Next Regular Meeting Tuesday December 8, 2015 @ 7:00 p.m. 

15. ADJOURNMENT 
• Moved by Ken Roth and Seconded by Dennis O’Conner. 
• That the Planning & Development Advisory Committee adjourns at 8:04 p.m. 

CARRIED 



 Committee of Adjustment Meeting 
November 3, 2015 

7:00 pm 
Council Chambers, Aberfoyle 

 
MINUTES 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: 
John Sepulis, Chair 
Councilor Ken Roth 
Dennis O’Connor 
Robin Wayne 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Dianne Paron 
 
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE:  
Kelly Patzer – Development Coordinator 
Sarah Wilhelm – County of Wellington 
Kevin Johnson 
Jeff Buisman 
Cam Koebel 
Sharon Richard 
Councilor Wayne Stokley 
 
1.  OPENING REMARKS 

• The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm. The Chair welcomed the gallery to the 
Committee of Adjustment meeting and informed the gallery Township Staff would 
present the application, then the applicant would have the opportunity to speak to 
present the purpose and details of the application and any provide any further 
relevant information. Following this the public can obtain clarification, ask questions 
and express their views on the proposal. The members of the Committee can then 
obtain clarification, ask questions and express their views on the proposal. All 
application decisions are subject to a 20 day appeal period. 

2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST 
• None 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 Moved by Robin Wayne, Seconded by Dennis O’Connor. 

• That the minutes of the Committee of Adjustment meeting held Tuesday October 
13th, 2015 be adopted. 

CARRIED 
 

4. COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT – Applications for Minor Variance 
4(a)  Minor Variance Application D13/KOE – Cameron & Trudy Koebel – Property 

described as Part Lot 6, Concession 1, 2 Lake Ave, Township of Puslinch 
 

Requesting relief from provisions of Zoning By-Law #19/85, as amended, to allow an 
accessory building (shed) to be set back 0.9 metres from the property line (side 
yard). 

• Kelly Patzer summarized the application for minor variance as submitted. No 
objections were received from circulated agencies or the public. The 
Township Chief Building Official has noted that the accessory building 
requires a 45 minute fire resistance wall with no unprotected windows or 
openings facing the side lot line and the reduced side yard setback should 
apply only to the existing accessory building.   



 2 

• Jeff Buisman indicated that the severance application is a result of an 
approved irregular-shaped lot line adjustment. The GRCA required the lot line 
be in its location due to the proximity of natural features. 

• Jeff Buisman addressed the proposed condition for the accessory building to 
have a 45 minute fire rating wall and noted there would never be another 
structure on the other side of the lot line because of the swampy lands in that 
location. He questioned how other municipalities permit 0.6 metre setbacks 
from the side and rear lot lines for accessory buildings, some of which are 
under a certain size and do not require building permits, and requested to 
strike the condition. 

• Jeff Buisman noted that Mr. Koebel is willing to put in the drywall if it is 
required under Ontario Building Code. 

• Robin Wayne asked if the shed is old, the purpose of the severance and 
noted the land on the other side of the property line is “true Puslinch swamp”. 

• Jeff Buisman stated that the Koebel’s were using the land and the lot line 
adjustment was to remedy the situation.   

• Cam Koebel stated the shed is 20 years old. 

• Councillor Roth indicated that he is hesitant to remove a condition without 
discussing it with the Chief Building Official, but the requirement for a fire wall 
beside a swamp is puzzling. 

• Dennis O’Connor stated there is a shed 1 foot away from the property line on 
a neighbouring property and was curious if other accessory buildings had fire 
walls. 

• John Sepulis stated he was comfortable striking the condition of the minor 
variance noting that a fire would not spread to another building due to the 
adjacent swamp lands.  

• Kelly Patzer noted that the Chief Building Official could enforce the fire wall 
requirement without the condition of variance 

• There were no further questions or comments.  
Moved by Ken Roth and Seconded by Robin Wayne, 
In the matter of Section 45 (1) of the Planning Act, as amended, and Comprehensive 
Zoning By-law 19/85 as amended, and an application for a minor variance 
requesting permission to allow: 

 
An existing accessory building to be setback 0.9 metres from the side lot line, 
whereas Section 3.1(d(i)) of the by-law, General Provisions, Accessory Uses, Yard 
Requirements, permits a building or structure accessory to a single dwelling 
anywhere in an interior side yard or a rear yard, provided that such accessory 
building or structure is not located closer than 2 metres to any lot line. 

 
The request is hereby Approved with the Following Condition: 

 
1. That the 0.9 metre side yard setback for accessory buildings or structures applies 

only to the existing accessory building (shed) as shown on the submitted Minor 
Variance Sketch. 

 
CARRIED 

5. ADJOURNMENT 
• The Committee of Adjustment meeting adjourned at 7:19 p.m. 

 



Committee of Adjustment Meeting 
November 10, 2015 

7:00 pm 
Council Chambers, Aberfoyle 

 
  

 
MINUTES 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: 
John Sepulis, Chair 
Councilor Ken Roth 
Dennis O’Connor 
Robin Wayne 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Dianne Paron 
 
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE:  
Kelly Patzer – Development Coordinator 
Sarah Wilhelm – County of Wellington 
Astrid Clos 
Sharon Richard 
Larry Walters 
 
1.  OPENING REMARKS 

• The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm. The Chair welcomed the gallery to the 
Committee of Adjustment meeting and informed the gallery Township Staff would 
present the application, then the applicant would have the opportunity to speak to 
present the purpose and details of the application and any provide any further 
relevant information. Following this the public can obtain clarification, ask questions 
and express their views on the proposal. The members of the Committee can then 
obtain clarification, ask questions and express their views on the proposal. All 
application decisions are subject to a 20 day appeal period. 

2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST 
• None 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
• None 

 
4. COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT – Applications for Minor Variance 
4(a)  Minor Variance Application D13/MIN – Mini Lakes Residents Association – 

Property described as Plan 61M203, Lot 179, 35 Cedarbush Crescent PVT, 
Township of Puslinch. 

 
Requesting relief from provisions of Zoning By-Law #19/85, as amended, to allow 
11.8% lot coverage for accessory buildings to permit a garage (accessory building) 
on the lot. 

• Kelly Patzer summarized the application for minor variance as submitted and 
noted no objections were received from circulated agencies or the public. 
Letters of support were attached to the agenda and the Township received 
two additional letters of support that were circulated to the Committee.   

• Astrid Clos indicated that she has been the Planner for Mini Lakes, assisting 
with applications since 2009. In 2012 issues were identified by Mini Lakes as 
a result of Building Permit applications and one item was that a 5% lot 
coverage for accessory buildings was adequate for larger lot coverage, so site 
amendment 9-13 to the by-law was passed to permit a total lot coverage of 
35% for all buildings on a lot. 



 2 

• Astrid Clos stated the total lot coverage of all buildings remains under 35% for 
this lot, 35 Cedar bush Crescent, and believes the minor variance should be 
approved. The Chief Building Official has interpreted the by-law so that the 
5% lot coverage for accessory buildings applies to Mini Lakes.  

• Larry Walters of 3 Cedarbush Crescent, PVT, inquired what the required 
accessory building setbacks are. 

• John Sepulis noted that the proposed accessory structure meets the required 
setbacks because the application was not requesting relief form the required 
setback provisions. 

• There were no further questions or comments.  
Moved by Ken Roth and Seconded by Robin Wayne, 
In the matter of Section 45 (1) of the Planning Act, as amended, and Comprehensive 
Zoning By-law 19/85 as amended, and an application for a minor variance 
requesting permission to allow: 
 
1. A total lot coverage of 11.8% for all accessory buildings, whereas Section 3.1(b) 

of the by-law, General Provisions, Accessory Uses, Lot Coverage, states the 
total lot coverage of all accessory buildings and structures on a lot shall not 
exceed 5% of the total lot area of the said lot.. 

 
The request is hereby Approved. 

CARRIED 

5. OTHER MATTERS 
5(a) Proposed 2016 Calendar of Meeting and Application Submission Deadlines 

Moved by Robin Wayne and Seconded by Dennis O’Connor, 
That the 2016 Planning & development Advisory Committee Calendar of Meeting 
Dates and Committee of Adjustment Application Submission Deadline dates be 
approved. 

CARRIED 
 
6. CLOSED MEETING 

• No matters 

7. NEXT MEETING  
• Tuesday December 8th, 2015 @ 7 p.m.(dated incorrectly on November 3, 2015 

Agenda). 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by Dennis O’Connor and Seconded by Robin Wayne, 
The Committee of Adjustment meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m. 

CARRIED 
 














	2015 12 16 - Council Agenda 
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6

	2015 12 02- Regular Meeting
	Public Meetings 
	Notice of Public Meeting - Community Based Strategic Plan - January 14, 2016
	Notice of Public Meeting - 2016 Proposed Budget

	Communications
	Communications 
	Item 6.1(a)
	Item 6.2(a)
	Item 6.3(a)
	Item 6.4(a)
	Item 6.4(b)


	Intergovernment Items
	Intergovernmental Items
	IG Items #1
	IG Item #2
	IG Item #3
	IG Item #4
	IG Item #5
	IG Item #6
	IG Item #7
	IG Item #8
	IG Item #9
	IG Item #10
	IG Item #11
	IG Item #13
	IG Item #14
	IG Item #15
	IG Item #16


	Reports
	REPORT FIN-2015-038 - Annual Indexing of Development Charges
	Report FIN-2015-038 - Annual Indexing of Development Charges 
	Schedule 1 
	Schedule 2 


	Report ADM-2015-022 - Country of Wellington Library Lease Agreement
	Report ADM-2015-023 - City of Cambridge - FD Automatic Aid Agreement
	Report ADM-2015-024 - Public Sector and MPP Accountability and Transparency Act Update
	REPORT ADM-2015-024 - Public Sector and MPP Accountability and Transparency Act Update
	Schedule "A" 


	Report ADM-2015-026 - Mission Statement Considerations
	Chief Building Official Report - November 2015
	Report PD-2015-029 - Site Plan Agreement with 2120826 Ontario Ltd. - 20 Brock Road North
	Rens Pet Depot Site Plan Agreement Dec 8 2015.pdf
	ARTICLE 1 - IDENTIFICATION OF LANDS APPROVED FOR DEVELOPMENT
	1.1 Legal description

	ARTICLE 2 - IDENTIFICATION OF PLAN(S)
	2.1 Approved plan(s)
	2.2 Filing of plan(s)

	ARTICLE 3 - SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS
	3.1 Additional requirements and provisions
	3.2 Current Deficiencies

	ARTICLE 4 - IMPLEMENTATION OF PLAN(S)
	4.1 Developer's covenant to implement plan(s)
	4.2 Township's right of entry
	4.3 Stop work orders
	4.4 Notice to comply
	4.5          Plan revisions during construction

	ARTICLE 5 - FINANCIAL ASSURANCES
	5.1 Security requirement - public lands
	5.2 Security requirement - subject lands
	5.3 Township's right to draw upon security
	5.4 Release of Security
	5.5 Township’s Expenses

	ARTICLE 6 - INDEMNIFICATION
	6.1 Developer's agreement to indemnify

	ARTICLE 7 - LIABILITY INSURANCE
	7.1 When liability insurance required

	ARTICLE 8 - TIME LIMITS FOR COMPLETION
	8.1 Consequences of delay
	8.2 Phasing of Site Development

	ARTICLE 9 - MAINTENANCE OBLIGATIONS
	9.1 General covenant to maintain and repair
	9.2 Specific maintenance obligations
	9.3 Off-site obligations

	ARTICLE 10 - CONVEYANCES AND EASEMENTS
	10.1 Developer's obligation to provide

	ARTICLE 11 - ENCUMBRANCERS' CONSENT AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT
	11.1 All encumbrancers to consent prior to permit issuance

	ARTICLE 12 - REGISTRATION OF AGREEMENT
	12.1 Registration prior to permit issuance

	ARTICLE 13 - GENERAL PROVISIONS
	13.1 Notices
	13.2 Township costs recoverable like taxes
	13.3 Waiver
	13.4 Covenants as restrictive covenants
	13.5 No permit if money owed to Township
	13.6 Number and Gender
	13.7 Headings and Index
	13.8 No assignment without consent
	13.9 Ultra vires terms
	13.10 Developer's acceptance of agreement
	13.11 Enurement
	SCHEDULE "A"
	SCHEDULE "B"
	SCHEDULE "C"
	SCHEDULE “D”
	SCHEDULE “E”
	SCHEDULE “F”
	SCHEDULE “G”




	Report PW-2015-006- Request for Speed Limit Reduction - Conc 4
	Report PW-2015-006 - Request for Speed Limit Reduction - Concession 4
	Schedule "A" 


	Report REC-2015-011 - 2015 Agreement with Calvary Baptist Church and Puslinch Minor Soccer
	Report REC-2015-011 - Agreement with Calvary Baptist Church and the Puslinch Minor Soccer Club
	SCHEDULE “A” Agreement
	SCHEDULE “B” User Fee and Maintenance Program
	SCHEDULE “C” Correspondence from Mr. Bruce Joy, President of the Puslinch Minor Soccer Club



	Mayors Updates 
	COUNTY OF WELLINGTON 2016-2020 Five Year PlanPresentation to Wellington County CouncilNovember 19, 2015
	County of Wellington Solid Waste Services Committee Report - Mobile Household Hazardous Waste Services dated September 8, 2015
	County of Wellington Solid Waste Services Committee Report - SWS Strategy Discussion Paper dated November 10, 2015

	Committee Minutes 
	2015 11 03 - Planning and Development Advisory Committee Minutes
	2015 11 03 - Committee of Adjustment Minutes
	2015 11 10 - Committee of Adjustment MInutes

	By Laws
	By-Laws
	ByLaw 14(a)
	ByLaw 14(b)
	ByLaw 14(c)
	ByLaw 14(d)
	ByLaw 14(e)





